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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment portfolio
including property investment and development, mining and
other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has fully-integrated production plant in China
with around 510 staff as at 30 June 2018. Our facility is
best known for their quality with extensive capabilities in
jewellery design, direct stone sourcing, lapidary, alloying and
gold refining. The management of the Group is known for its
commitment to quality, and its finished products are visible
testaments to that commitment.
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Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the financial year 2018, the Group's consolidated
revenue recorded a decrease of approximately HK$235.4
million or 37.5% from last year's HK$627.3 million to
HK$391.9 million. The decrease was mainly attributable to
(i) suspension of the diamond polishing operations since
May 2017; and (ii) absence of a one-off revenue arising from
disposal of 3 floors of an investment property amounting
to approximately HK$133.5 million. During the year, profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$354.8
million. The substantial increase in profits over last year's
HK$98.3 million was primarily attributable to (i) the one-off
gain from the disposal of a 50% joint venture of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$363.2 million; (i) unrealised
fair value gain on the investment properties of approximately
HK$67.0 million; and (iii) share of profit of joint ventures of
approximately HK$69.1 million, which partially offset the
impairment loss on mining right amount to HK$42.0 million
and estimated income tax of approximately HK$75.1 million.
The basic earnings per share was HK5.19 cent (2017: HK1.44
cent).
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During the year under review, the Group’s revenue
on trading of fine jewellery recorded a decrease of
approximately HK$96.8 million or 20.0% from last year's
HK$483.1 million to HK$386.3 million for the year ended
30 June 2018. The decrease in the revenue was mainly due
to the suspension of the diamond polishing business in
2017. While the overall luxury market has showed signs of
improvement, particularly in the United States, the luxury

jewellery segment remained as a highly competitive and

crowded marketplace. The traditional retailers are facing
strong competition from online retailers as well as fashion
brands. In the United Kingdom and Europe, the markets are
stable but fragmented. The jewellery industry is experiencing
further consolidation worldwide and it is expected to see
more changes in the near future. Amidst all challenges, the
Group managed to maintain its turnover while improving its
segment result by offering higher quality products as well
as working with retailers on more private label brands and
collections.

During the vyear, the Board had been taking initiatives to
co-operate with strategic partners to pursue new business
opportunities with a view to diversify the business of the
Group. As a result, the Group had invested in a company,
which is mainly engaged in the operation of retail and
trading of a branded fashion jewellery. The brand mainly
penetrates in the Hong Kong and China markets which
are both new territories for the Group. Our management
believes that this will be a valuable addition to the long term
strategy of the Group and it will make positive contribution
in the future.
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For property investment, the Group completed the
acquisition of a piece of land located at No. 232 Wan Chai
Road, Hong Kong at a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,180 million. The land is a clear site with a site area
of approximately 5,798 sq. ft. Up to the date of this annual
report, the Group intends to redevelop the land into a
premium grade office and retail composite 26-storey building
with a gross floor area of approximately 86,970 sg. ft. and
to hold it for long term investment purpose. The foundation
work has commenced in September 2018 and the building is
expected to be completed in 2021.

In view of the revitalizing property market condition in
China, the Board believed it is a good opportunity for the
Group to realize its investment in Shanghai. The Group has
sold a 50% owned joint venture which holds the “Bauhinia
Square”, an eleven-floored shopping mall located in Yangpu
District of Shanghai. The consideration of the disposal was
approximately HK$1,305.8 million and was completed on 20
April 2018. The gain from the disposal was approximately
HK$277.5 million after netting off the estimated income
tax. The proceeds from the disposal will enable the Group
to reduce its borrowings and to improve the working capital
position of the Group for future business opportunities and
investments.

Subsequent to the financial year, on 20 July 2018, the Group
has entered into preliminary agreements to acquire 12
floors of Glassview Commercial Building (the “Properties”)
at 65 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, New Territories at a
consideration of approximately HK$129 million, with a gross
floor area of approximately 14,508 sq. ft. The Properties
currently fully let and will provide a stable rental income to
the Group. It is the current intention of the Group to hold
the Properties for long term investment.
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In the mining segment, mining operation was minimized.
As all the previously reported gold resources at the Yuanling
mine site had been exhausted, the Company has been
developing new shaft and re-visiting the old shaft in the
Yuanling mine site. Meanwhile, the Company will continue
exploration at the north eastern part of Yuanling.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In the coming year, it is anticipated that the jewellery
business will continue to be very competitive and
challenging. The current trade tensions between China and
the United States will likely impact the overall economy.
Meanwhile, the negotiations between the United Kingdom
with European Union on the Brexit still remain uncertain.
Amidst of these economic uncertainties, the Group will
continue to foster its relationship with key customers
and strengthen its market position. The Group is actively
seeking opportunities in gaining market share through
strategic investments and partnerships. Subsequent to year
end date, the Group has entered into a non-legal binding
memorandum of understanding with an independent third
party to acquire certain assets of a jewellery company in the
United Kingdom. The Board believes that such acquisition
will further expand and strength the Group's presence and
foothold in the United Kingdom market.

In property, following the disposal of Group’s 50% joint
venture project located in Shanghai, the Group will continue
to reinforce knowledge to take root in the property markets
and grasp more sound investment opportunities. With the
recent acquisitions of 12 floors commercial properties in
Yuen Long, the Group believes it will provide a steady source
of income. It is the Group's intention to broaden its property
investment portfolio, in hope to bring in additional source of
income and profits to the Group.
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The management remains positive in the overall market
outlook and will strive to expand its business and investment
portfolio in order to enhance the return on equity to the
Group and its shareholders.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 30 June 2018, the Group held an equity interest in
Macarthur Minerals Limited (“MMS"), MMS is an Australian
company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada. The
Group holds the interest in MMS for long term investment
and accounted for as a non-current asset as “available-
for-sale financial assets”. During the year, the fair value
of MMS was determined to be impaired on the basis of
significant and prolonged decline in its fair value below
cost. Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$984,000 (2017:
HK$620,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON MINING RIGHT AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Directors
appointed an independent professional valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited, to perform a valuation with respect to
Hongzhuang Gold Mine situated at Henan Province, China
and impairment loss of mining right and property plant and
equipment amounting to HK$41,972,000 (2017: Nil) and
HK$890,000 (2017: Nil) respectively has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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The fair value of Hongzhuang Gold Mine was estimated
based on the Market Based Approach with reference to
comparable transactions, in which such approach was
consistent with mining right valuation as at 30 June 2017.
The key inputs used in the valuation were the consideration-
to-resources multiples obtained from comparable
transactions, the adjusted contained gold metal based on the
technical review report prepared by SRK Consulting China
Limited under Chinese standard.

The Chinese standard resources estimates as reported by SRK
Consulting China Limited were risk with uncertainty. The
estimated fair value of the Hongzhuang Gold Mine has been
assigned a lower or no credit to those resources with high
resources risks.

As at 30 June 2018, the Directors also conducted an
impairment assessment on certain of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment under Yuanling mine site due to the
delay of the operation plan. Accordingly, an impairment
loss of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$7,051,000 (2017: HK$23,374,000) had been recognised
and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

All the above-mentioned impairment loss on mining right
and property, plant and equipment was included in the
Group’s mining segment in the reportable and operating
segment of the Group.
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RIFELEHRAE18.150% » £ ANNUAL UPDATE ON DETAILS OF RESOURCES
18.171% R %1818/ B EIRE AND/OR RESERVES UNDER RULES OF 18.15, 18.17

R/BHEHEZEEEN AND 18.18 OF THE LISTING RULES
AEBZERER KHEERFR There has been no material change on the resources and/or
WEmERNEE  TREFINAEE 2 reserves of the Group during the year. The following table
BRER/XFEERZT—N\FX shows the details of resources and/or reserves of the Group
A=+BZ#E: as at 30 June 2018:
HEAR BE AE WEAH BLER E4BRE HEEY EEmiL
Type of
mining Gold  Reporting
Subsidiary Mine field Area  Reporting date operation resources  Standard Gold grade
(FHTX) (1) (%/1)
(km?) (t (9/t)
EEAVT £ 3 e 109 ZE-\% #T 1073 HEIRE 122 558
BRAT Hongzhuang NA=TH Underground PRC 122b
Henan 30 June 2018 546  HEIRE 332 1.89
Multi-Resources PRC 332
Mining Company 2466  HEIZE 33 446
Limited* PRC 333
T# 457 ZE-N\E  HT - RERE 122 -
Yuanling ~AZTH Underground PRC 122b
30 June 2018 - PERE3R3 -
PRC 333

HEERER HHFERCEREE Factors and assumptions such as gold grade, ore body

tmi BEEELREREKERA thickness and shape of vein were considered for estimating

=ZhBR-FRERENR XHE the resources and/or reserves. Please refer to Section 8

HWEZE—FHEFL2HEARAEHE of Appendix VII of the circular of the Company dated 25

MR- T —TF—HA-T+HHBZA January 2010 for further information of the resources and/or

BRI Ff 8%+ S5 85f © reserves estimation.

* PR 2 IFE R R = * The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
EXE0 ] names are for identification purpose only
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2018, the Group's gearing ratio was zero
(2017: 0), which is calculated on net debt divided by total
equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the sum of
bank and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
The Group maintains a strong financial position with
cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,128,664,000 (2017:
HK$374,648,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and British Pound. Bank
loans were HK$611,000,000 (2017: HK$119,000,000),
which were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Other
borrowings in respect of amounts due to related companies,
loan from a controlling shareholder and loan from ultimate
holding company were approximately of HK$388,535,000
(2017: HK$87,218,000). The bank loans are secured by first
legal charges over the Group's investment properties, certain
leasehold land and buildings, land use rights and guaranteed
by corporate guarantees executed by the Company.

The substantial increase in the Group's cash and cash
equivalent as at 30 June 2018 were mainly attributed to the
net proceeds received from the disposal of the Groups's 50%
joint venture. With the cash yet to be utilised and in line with
the Group's prudent financial management, the Directors
considered that the Group has sufficient working capital to
meet its ongoing operational requirements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2018, the Group's investment properties,
certain leasehold land and buildings and land use rights
with an aggregate net carrying value of HK$1,320,921,000
(2017: HK$51,236,000) were pledged to certain banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar and Renminbi. Interest is determined with reference
to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or Prime Rate for
Hong Kong Dollar borrowings, and the benchmark lending
rate of the People’s Bank of China for Renminbi borrowings.
The Group also made use of foreign exchange forward
contracts in order to minimize exchange rate risk as a result
of fluctuation in British Pound. There was no change to the
Group’s capital structure during the year ended 30 June
2018. In light of the current financial position of the Group
and provided there is no unforeseeable circumstance, the
management does not anticipate the need to change the
capital structure.

NOTIFIABLE TRANSACTIONS
1. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

On 17 July 2017, the Group had entered into
a preliminary sale and purchase agreement (the
“Ontrack Agreement”) with an independent third
party relating to acquisition of 100% equity interest
of Ontrack Ventures Limited and its subsidiary, which
principal asset is a piece of land at No. 232 Wan
Chai Road, Hong Kong, at a total consideration of
HK$1,180,000,000, subject to certain adjustment in
accordance with the terms of the Ontrack Agreement
(the "Acquisition”). The Acquisition, which constitutes
a very substantial acquisition for the Company under
the Listing Rules, was approved by way of poll at the
Company’s general meeting on 20 October 2017.
Completion of the Acquisition took place on 25
October 2017.

The details of the Acquisition were set out in the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 18
July 2017 and 25 September 2017 respectively.
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Disposal of Interests in a Joint Venture Company

On 22 January 2018, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the "Wealth Plus
Agreement”) with A Glory Communications Limited
("A Glory"”) to sell 50% of the issued share capital of
Wealth Plus Developments Limited (“Wealth Plus”)
and the shareholders loan owning by Wealth Plus
to the Group (the “Disposal”). Wealth Plus is a joint
venture company held as to 50% by each of the
Group and A Glory. Wealth Plus’s sole wholly owned
subsidiary, Shanghai Haijin Real Estate Co., Ltd., is
the owner of “Bauhinia Square” in Yangpu District,
Shanghai, the PRC. Pursuant to the Wealth Plus
Agreement, the amount of consideration is expected
to be approximately HK$1,308 million. The disposal
constituted a very substantial disposal transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules and was
approved by way of poll at the Company’s general
meeting on 6 April 2018. Completion of the Disposal
took place on 20 April 2018. Further details were
disclosed in the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 24 January 2018 and 2 March 2018
respectively.
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ADVANCE FROM A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
AND AN ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

As at 30 June 2018, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
("Dr. Chan") has advanced a loan in the amount of
RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,741,600)
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the loan is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 25 October 2020.

As at 30 June 2018, the Company had outstanding loan of
HK$350,000,000 due to an ultimate holding company. The
loan is unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.5% per annum and
due for repayment on 24 September 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2018, the Company has provided guarantees
to the extent of HK$611,000,000 (2017: HK$119,000,000)
with respect to bank loans to its subsidiaries. Under the
guarantees, the Company would be liable to pay the banks
if the banks are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting
date, no provision for the Company’s obligation under
the guarantee contract has been made as the directors
considered that it was unlikely the repayment of the loans
would be in default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2018, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments of approximately HK$7,365,000 (2017:
HK$696,000), which was mainly the capital commitments for
the investment property undertaken by the Group.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 20 July 2018, the Group had entered into 11 preliminary
sale and purchase agreements (the “Agreements”) with
an independent third party relating to acquisition of 100%
equity interests of eleven companies, which principal asset
comprise 12 floors in a commercial building in Yuen Long
at a total consideration of HK$129,000,000, in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement (the “Acquisition”).
The Acquisition constitutes a discloseable transaction of
the Company and is expected to be completed on 22
October 2018. Details of the Acquisition were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 July 2018.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES
AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group employs a total of approximately 660 employees
with the majority in the PRC. The Group’s remuneration to
its employees is largely based on common industrial practice.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 13
July 2010, under which, the Company may grant options
to eligible persons including directors and employees. As
at 30 June 2018, 120,000,000 share options were granted
pursuant to the scheme since its adoption.

The purpose of the share option scheme is (i) to recruit
and retain high calibre eligible persons and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group; (i) to recognize the
contributions of eligible persons to the growth of the Group
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and (iii) to motivate and to give
incentives to these eligible persons to continue to contribute
to the long term success and prosperity of the Group.
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The total number of shares available for issue under the share
option scheme was 192,830,334 which represented 2.82%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
annual report. The number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible person
in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company's
shares in issue at the adoption date.

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company as consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of a share option to subscribe for shares of
the Company shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; and (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The share option scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years ending 12 July 2020, after which no
further options will be granted.
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Balance Granted Exercised Balance
Date of Grant Exercisable Exercise Price as at During During as at
Name of Grantee (dd/mm/yyyy)  Period per Share  1July 2017 the Year the Year 30 June 2018
(1)
(HKS)
B EE 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 18/06/2024
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
REHL L 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 18/06/2024
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
FEEEE 07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Yam Tat Wing 06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
BEERLE 25/07/2014 25/07/2014 - 0.121 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Wong Edward 24/07/2024
Gwon-hing
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
110,000,000 - - 110,000,000
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Further details of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial
risk management and the market risk had been kept to
minimum. With the exception of the UK subsidiaries, all
transactions and the borrowings of the Group are primarily
denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi.
During the year, the Group had entered into certain foreign
exchange forward contracts in order to minimise the
exchange rate risk as a result of fluctuation in British Pound.
Management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
risk in British Pound and recent fluctuation in Renminbi and
will take appropriate actions when necessary.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
will be held on Monday, 17 December 2018 and the Notice
of AGM will be published and despatched in the manner
as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 12 December 2018 to Monday,
17 December 2018 both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
11 December 2018.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the Register of Members will be closed from Friday,
21 December 2018 to Thursday, 27 December 2018, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged
with the office of the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 20 December 2018. Subject to the approval
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, the proposed final dividend will be paid on
or around Thursday, 10 January 2019.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Group’s management and staff members
for their dedication and hard work, our customers for
their confidence and support for our products, and our
shareholders for their trust and support.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 September 2018
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, was appointed as Chairman of
the Group since 2017. He joined the Group in 2000 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in 2006.
He currently strategizes the direction of the Group and also
provides leadership to the Board. He manages and oversees
the overall Group operations and is responsible in leading
the management on various aspects of the Group such
as sales and marketing, product development, investment
and financing activities, as well as corporate and business
development, etc.

Mr. Chan holds a number of public and honorary positions,
such as Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade
Manufacturers Association; Founding Chairman of the Youth
Chapter of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council
Member of the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council; Executive Committee
member of Federation of Hong Kong Industries; and
President of Entrepreneurs’ Organization (Hong Kong and
China South Chapters). He was appointed as a committee
member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since 2013. He is also a Director of
Hong Kong United Youth Association.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan had worked in both
banking and manufacturing industry for several years. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree with double majors in
Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance from Babson College in
Boston, Massachusetts. Mr. Chan is the son of Dr. Chan and
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.
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Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP, is Founder of the
Group. Dr. Chan is an Executive Director of the Company and
holds directorship in various subsidiaries of the Company. He
is responsible for strategic planning, corporate development
and investment of the Group. Dr. Chan has over 50 years
of experience in the jewellery industry. He is currently the
Honorary Permanent President of the Hong Kong Jewellery
& Jade Manufacturers Association; Honorary Member of
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd.; Honorary
Court Member and Institutional Advancement and Outreach
Committee Member of the University Court of The Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology; as well as a
member of other trade associations. In community, charitable
and political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent
Honorary Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association
Ltd., and Member of The Association of Chairmen of The
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed
a Committee Member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference during 2003-2016;
and the Founding President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese
Enterprise Federation since 2006. Dr. Chan is the husband of
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, is the Managing Director
and Co-Founder of the Group. Ms. Cheng is an Executive
Director of the Company and holds directorship in various
subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible for the daily
operations, financial management, corporate development,
sales and marketing as well as strategic planning of the
Group. Ms. Cheng has over 45 years of experience in the
jewellery industry and has been actively involved in the
business development of the Group since the beginning. Ms.
Cheng also plays an active role in the community, currently
Director of Zonta Club of Hong Kong (2018-2020), and Vice
Chairman, Executive Committee and Honorary Vice President
of the Hong Kong Federation of Women. In addition, she
was awarded as one of the “100 Chinese Outstanding
Women Entrepreneurs” in 2006 and was a Committee
Member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan
Sing Chuk, Charles.
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Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995. She
is an Executive Director of the Company and is responsible
for property development in Hong Kong, retail operation
and the business administration functions in the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from University of California, Berkeley
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Ms. Chan
is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute
of America. She is Charter President of Zonta Club of
Hong Kong Il and Area Director of Zonta International
(2010-2012), actively involved in the Zonta Community. She
is also a member of Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur
Association. She is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing, joined the Group in
1998, and has been appointed as Executive Director of
the Company since 1 March 2014. He is also the General
Manager of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr,
Wong has over 30 years experience in manufacturing, sales
marketing and management in jewellery industry. Mr. Wong
is responsible for overall development and management of
the Group's jewellery business.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yam Tat Wing, joined the Group in 2011 as General
Manager — Business Development and Mining of the Group,
was appointed as Executive Director on 1 March 2014
and was re-designated as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2017. Mr. Yam was educated up
to matriculation and he obtained a certificate in Personnel
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yam had served in the Hong
Kong Police Force (the “Force”) for over 37 years, he was
previously Deputy Commissioner, Operations from January
2007 to March 2010. Mr. Yam has extensive experience in
leadership, public administration and crisis management.

During his career in the Force, Mr. Yam was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star Medal, Colonial Police Long
Service Medal with 3rd clasp, the Colonial Police Medal
for Meritorious Service, the Hong Kong Police Medal for
Distinguished Service and Chief Executives Commendation.
In August 2011, he was appointed an Affiliated Fellow of
Wu Yee Sun College of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
for a term of five years. The appointment has been extended
for another term of five years in August 2016.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 40 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he has also actively involved in the community
services of Hong Kong and has served several advisory
bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 30 years. He
was subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government in the year 2007. From
March 2016 to August 2018, Mr. Yu is the Chairman and
an Executive Director of K. H. Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code:1557), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years’ experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a Founder and Director of various logistic companies and
was a Director of a private company engaging in logistics and
forwarding.
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Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze
graduated with a Bachelor's degree in Science from
University of Wisconsin-La Crosse, United States in 1985. Mr.
Sze has extensive experience in investment and corporate
management and is currently a Non-executive Director of
China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3778) and Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 761) and an Independent Non-executive Director
of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
25), these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
is also an Executive Director of a private company, Hang
Tung Resources Holding Limited, and holds directorship in
various private companies. Mr. Sze is a Deputy Director of
the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (“CPPCC") Subcommittee of
Human Resources and Environment and an executive
director of the Beijing Committee of the CPPCC and
currently the Permanent Honorary President of the Chinese
Manufacturers” Association of Hong Kong. He is also elected
as a member of Election Committee of the Chief Executive
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Sze
was appointed the Justice of Peace and awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2011 and 2015 respectively.

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee of the Board on 7 April 2010.
Mr. Cheung is currently the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of China Weaving Materials Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3778), a Company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He has over 25 years of experience in accounting,
finance and administration and has held senior positions
in multinational companies. He obtained his MBA from
University of Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.
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From March 2016 to August 2018, Mr. Cheung was an
Independent Non-Executive Director of K. H. Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1557), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. From March 2009 to July 2011, he was a part-
time tutor at the Open University of Hong Kong. From March
2004 to November 2007, he was an Executive Director of
Sun Innovation Holdings Limited (now known as Digital
Domain Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 547), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, and was also the Chief
Financial Officer from March 2007 to February 2008. He was
an Independent Director of LJ International Inc. (NASDAQ:
JADE), a company listed on NASDAQ from June 2007 to
October 2007. From January 2001 to December 2003, he
was a Director of e-Lux (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as
Quants Capital (Hong Kong) Limited), a subsidiary of e-Lux
Corporation (JASDAQ: 6811) (now known as Quants Inc.),
in charge of value-added telecommunications services in
Hong Kong, Taiwan and China. He was the group financial
controller and a director of New Media Corporation, a
subsidiary of e-New Media Company Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 128) (now known
as ENM Holdings Limited) from 1995 to 1999 and 1999 to
2000, respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric, FGA, DGA, FGAHK, CG
(Diamond), joined the Group in 1987, is the Head of Group
Operations. He has over 30 years of experience in application
system implementation and supply chain management in the
jewellery industry. He holds gemmologist qualification, and
is fellow of The Gemmological Association of Great Britain;
director of The Gemmological Association of Hong Kong;
and appointed as RPL Assessor at Qualifications Framework
of jewellery industry by Vocational Training Council.
Currently, Mr. Choi oversees the daily operation, information
& technology, administration and human resources of the
Group. He is also in charge of the implementation of ISO
Quality Management System.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The board of directors
(the "Board”) considers shareholders can maximise their
benefits from good corporate governance.

The Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules set out the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) with effect from 1 April 2012. During the year
ended 30 June 2018, the Company has complied with the
Code, except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1,
A.4.1, A6.7 and C.2.5 which are explained in the following
relevant paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY'S PRACTICES

A.1. The Board

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for its leadership and control
and be collectively responsible for promoting its success by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors should take
decisions objectively in the best interests of the issuer.

The board should regularly review the contribution required
from a director to perform his responsibilities to the issuer,
and whether he is spending sufficient time performing them.
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HITEE Executive Directors

RETEE Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor
REEE 1 B AT 4T Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, 88, JP
S5 e Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley

BREH L+ Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
BRERE Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing
FHITEE Non-executive Director
EE8%EE Mr. Yan Tat Wing

BUFNTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
RIERSH 8BS MBE- AF4T M. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, P
R ImAE S Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

TEERIZ LA RS AT 4T Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP

REEEE Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank
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The Board held seven meetings during the financial year
ended 30 June 2018. Attendance of individual Director at
the Board meetings, other Board Committee meetings, the
annual general meeting (“2017 AGM"), and extraordinary
general meetings held on 20 October 2017 and 6 April 2018
during financial year ended 30 June 2018 are as follows:

SHHE/BITRY

Meetings Attended / Held
e 3
EWZEE HMZEE REZEE RE IRE
ErEed L L L HAKE BEXE
2017
Meetings of ~ Meeting of ~ Meeting of  Extraordinary Annual
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination General General
Meetings Committee Committee Committee Meetings Meeting
7 - - |l 212 "
07 - B = 2/2 7
77 - 1 - 212 11
7 - - - 212 11
7 - - - 212 11
07 - B = 2/2 7
7 33 1" - 212 11
71 33 1" 1" 212 17
7 33 ”n - 12 "
07 33 B 7N 2/2 7

Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee
meetings are duly kept and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be present at such Board
meeting.

The Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.



Corporate Governance Report m X E 4R

A2 TERITHAR

BRETAELEEE LREMKA
TH-EFgNKEEEMERD
REEE -EMEZLRLABRER
D NERENFRED HIGE
THENEETR AL

ST RIMESC A 2 1 RT AR BT TR AR L
ZAERARD W EH— AR
PR (E

HITESFRELLEE (TREEDR
RRRBEFE -REERFEEHE
AEBE R A YRKEEE
FE - NHEREFZSRAAIE
ENETBE Y RRHMAEER
MEEEEETHm REAELTE
ERREREFNTAWUES=SS
&M EE THREZBES
KRR A 2 EF

WL ([t ]) REARAE
SRgE AEAKRECZAEERE
KI5 e B R TS

HARARRRRERLITHRAEE —
B HEFERR/RRTIBEST
ERH B ARRE D MR ERSG
Ffye

A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of business. There should be a clear division
of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor (“Mr. Victor Chan"), an Executive
Director and also the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Victor
Chan currently strategizes the direction of the Group and
also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Mr. Victor Chan is also responsible
to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and that all Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete and reliable,
in a timely manner.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley ("Ms. Cheng”) is the Managing
Director of the Company. She is responsible for day-to-day
management and the marketing activities of the Group.

Although the Company does not have a post for Chief
Executive Officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance of
power and authority.
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A.3. Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate for the requirements
of the issuer’s business. It should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption.
It should include a balanced composition of executive
and non-executive directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong independent
element on the board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. Non-executive directors should
be of sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry
weight.

As at 30 June 2018, the Board comprises five Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Victor Chan, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles (“Dr. Chan”), Ms. Cheng, Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
("Ms. Vicki Chan”) and Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing; one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yam Tat Wing; four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Shiu
Tin, Paul, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. All Directors are expressly identified
by categories of Executive Directors, Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Directors, in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of Directors of the
Company.

Mr. Victor Chan is the brother of Ms. Vicki Chan. They are
the son and daughter, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms.
Cheng. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 25 to 31 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications among members of the Board.

A list containing the names of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.continental.com.hk.
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A.4. Appointments, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors. There
should be plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election at
regular intervals. An issuer must explain the reasons for the
resignation or removal of any director.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting at least
once every three years in accordance with articles 115(A) and
115(D) of the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Board considers that the deviation from Code Provision A.4.1
is not material as Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors are subjected to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years and re-election.

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in a general meeting. The
nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the
website of the Company at www.continental.com.hk. Any
Director who is appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after their appointment, and
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All candidates
must be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independent criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. To further enhance accountability
under code provision A.4.3, any further re-appointment of
an Independent Non-executive Director who has served the
Company's Board for more than nine years will be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul and
Mr. Sze Irons have served as Independent Non-executive
Directors for more than 9 years and all of them had met
the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek,
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul and Mr. Sze Irons a confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
they have not engaged in any daily executive management
of the Group. They continue to demonstrate the attributes
of an Independent Non-executive Director by providing
independent view and advice and there is no evidence that
their tenure have had any impact on their independence.
Taking into consideration of their independent scope of
work in the past years, the Directors consider Mr. Chan Ping
Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul and Mr. Sze Irons to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rule. Having
consider their valuable knowledge and experiences in the
Group’s business, the Board considers the re-election of Mr.
Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul and Mr. Sze
Irons as independent Non-Executive Directors are in the best
interest of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

A.5. Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference as set out in the Code
Provisions A.5.2 (a) to (d) and are published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for formulating nomination policy,
and making recommendations to the Board on nomination
and appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The Committee will also review the size, structure and
composition of the Board. The Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’'s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

A majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. Victor Chan. The other members are Mr. Chan
Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

A.6. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director must always know his responsibilities as a
director of an issuer and its conduct, business activities and
development. Given the essential unitary nature of the board,
non-executive directors have the same duties of care and skill
and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
business governance policies of the Group. The Directors are
continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and strategic development of the Group to enable
the discharge of their responsibilities.
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BEEREBEZT-\FA=T The individual training record of each Director for the year
B IEFEMEXFIZ @558k ended 30 June 2018 is as follows:
T
REM R
AEREERN
EHFEN
HEHE
Reading
materials/
regulatory
updates?/
Attending
! Directors seminar
HITEE Executive Directors
PR1ES S Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor v
PREESZEH L ' BBS AT+ Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BB, Jp v
1Y g Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley v
PREE 2+ Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki v
mARLE Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing v
FHITEE Non-executive Director
FiEREA Mr. Yam Tat Wing v
BIIPITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
RIGE R ST A BBS - MBE - AT 4+ Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP v
ok A 5 A Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek v
MESE I ST LE  BBS AT 4L Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP v
oR RSB S A Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank v
# MEEHECEE AT R IEME # Reading materials concerning latest developments in
B MHBEERETERIME - corporate governance practices, relevant legal and regulatory
developments.

BEFHERBREZZEREREZR At each Director’s first appointment and subsequent
REEZFERAARREEERAR reappointment, the Director is required to disclose to
NRISAEBETRUNEE RS the Company the number and nature of offices held in
VA Ko B th B8 KEHE - LA KPP K ) public companies or organizations and other significant
KA - BB RBERARAEEM commitments as well as the time involved. The Directors are
Eﬁzmﬁﬁ EETAEBMARA also required to notify the Company whenever there are
changes to the offices and commitments already disclosed.
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The Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are highly skilled professionals with
expertise and experience in the field of accounting, financial
management and business. All Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in
Board meetings to bring in independent judgement to bear
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts.
They scrutinize the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitor the
reporting of performance. They also take the lead where
potential conflicts of interest arise and serve the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. The Company
has received written confirmation from all the Independent
Non-executive Directors concerning their independence. The
Board considers all of them are independent.

Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive
Directors should also attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr.
Sze Irons, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, did not attend the extraordinary general meeting
held on 6 April 2018 due to other business engagement.
Other Independent Non-executive Directors were present
at the extraordinary general meeting and were available to
answer questions.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transaction by Directors of
the Company. The Company has made specific enquiry with
all Directors and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 30 June 2018.
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A.7. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in the form and quality to enable
them to make an informed decision and perform their duties
and responsibilities.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions. The
information supplied must be complete and reliable. The
Board and each Director shall have separate and independent
access to the Company'’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose its directors’ remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and
all directors” remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent. Remuneration levels should be sufficient to
attract and retain directors to run the company successfully
without paying more than necessary. No director should be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.2 (a) to (h) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee, with delegated responsibility, is responsible
for annually reviewing the existing remuneration policy
including the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management whereas the Board as a
whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any. Terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Sze Irons.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 30 June 2018 to discuss remuneration related matters
and to review and approve the remuneration policy of the
Directors and of the Group.

The emoluments of the senior management by band for the
year ended 30 June 2018 is set out below:

AE
R 48 B Number of persons
Emolument bands 2018 2017
= 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 1 2
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to independent professional
advice, to perform its duties if considered necessary.

C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping
proper accounting records and preparing consolidated
financial statements of each financial period, which shall give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2018, the Directors have made judgements and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about its responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 65 to
73 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2018.

For the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
values over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
objectives, please refer to page 5 under Corporate Profile
and pages 7 to 24 under Chairman’s Statement.
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The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

C.2. Risk management and Internal control

The board should ensure that the issuer establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board requires management to establish
and maintain appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Evaluation of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering financial,
operational and compliance controls had been done on
an on going basis. Review of internal controls on different
systems will be done on a systematic rotational basis based
on the risk assessments of the operations and controls.
The Board has confirmed that there was no significant
weakness and area of improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken.

Code Provision C.2.5 provides that the issuer should have
an internal audit function. Issuers without an internal audit
function should review the need for one on an annual basis
and should disclose the reasons for the absence of such
a function. The Company does not have an internal audit
function for the year ended 30 June 2018. Taking into
account the size and complexity of the operations of the
Group, the Company considers that the existing organisation
structure and the close supervision of the management could
provide sufficient internal control and risk management
for the Group. The audit committee of the Board regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the internal control systems and
risk management of the Group. The Board would review the
need to set up an internal audit function on an annual basis.
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C.3. Audit Committee

The board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements to consider how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s auditor. The audit
committee established under the Listing Rules should have
clear terms of reference.

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The revised terms of
reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority and its
duties and responsibilities are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for oversight of financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, and for
reviewing the financial information of annual report, financial
statements and interim report. As required by Code Provision
C.3.7, the Audit Committee would review arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee would ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow up action and acting as
the key representation body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. The Audit Committee meet with
external auditor at least twice a year.
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All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been
addressed by management. The work and findings of the
Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During
the year, no issues brought to the attention of management
and the Board were of sufficient importance to require
disclosure in the Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s
recommendation for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
the Company'’s independent auditor.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, including in the auditor’s
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has paid approximately
HK$670,000 in relation to the non-audit services (including
other reporting services).

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all Audit
Committee members for their comments and records, within
a reasonable time after the meeting.

The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company's existing auditor.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditor, to perform its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for board approval. The board should
give clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by it before decisions are made on issuer’s
behalf.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group's business is the responsibility of
the management.
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When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management, in
particular, where management shall report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of matters reserved
to the Board for decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

D.2. Board Committees

Board committees should be formed with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties.

The Board has established an Audit Committee (particulars
are disclosed under C.3), a Remuneration Committee
(particulars are disclosed under B.1) and a Nomination
Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.5). Where
Board Committees are established to deal with matters, the
Board shall give them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions properly. The
terms of reference of Board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.
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D.3. Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc. During the year ended 30 June 2018, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation.

At the 2017 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-elections of Directors. The attendance records at Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and 2017 AGM are
disclosed on page 34.

The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels
of communication with its shareholders. It has been the
practice, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of
the Board Committees, together with the external auditor,
shall attend the AGM to answer questions of shareholders.
Apart from the direct interaction with the shareholders at the
AGM, the Company has established different communication
channels with its shareholders. We maintain a corporate
website www.continental.com.hk to publish our final and
interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements and other relevant shareholder information.
The announcements and the Articles of Association of
the Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Pursuant to Code Provision
E.1.3, the Company arranges for the notice for AGM to be
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.
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E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should ensure that shareholders are familiar with
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
will be taken by poll, except the Chairman decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands,
pursuant to the requirement under Rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules.

The Chairman of the AGM will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the AGM.

After the conclusion of the AGM, the poll results will be
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and at the website www.continental.com.hk
on the business day following the AGM.

F. Company Secretary

The company secretary plays an important roles in supporting
the board by ensuring good information flow within the
board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
The company secretary is responsible for advising the
board through the chairman and/or the chief executive on
governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of directors.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and his
appointment and removal is subject to Board approval. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Director’s duties, such as by giving advice on
corporate governance development and facilitating the
professional development program of Directors. All Directors
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations, are followed. During the fiscal
year 2018, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights may call for an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward agenda items by sending a
written request to the Company Secretary at the Company'’s
registered office. Shareholders of the Company representing
at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
who have a right to vote or at least 50 members who have a
right to vote on the resolution of the annual general meeting
to which the requests relate, may put forward proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company
by sending a written request to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office. Procedures on how
shareholders can propose a person for election as a Director
are available at the Company’s website for shareholders’
information.

Shareholders may send their enquiries by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by post to the registered office of
the Company. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns, where
appropriate, will be forwarded to and answered by the Board
or relevant Board Committees.

Investor Relations

There were no significant changes in the Company’s Articles
of Association during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transaction by Directors of the Company.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 30 June 2018.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's financial performance for the year ended 30
June 2018 and the financial position of the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 74 to 259.

At the board meeting held on 24 September 2018, the
directors resolved to recommend a final dividend of HKO0.5
cent per ordinary share. The proposed dividend have not
been recognised as a dividend payable as at 30 June 2018,
but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits
for the year ending 30 June 2019.

The directors did not recommend any payment of dividends
in respect of the year ended 30 June 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 7 to 24 of
this Annual Report.



Directors’ Report m EEERE

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE—ZT—)\FAA=THILFE

REBEAZFEER FER
SrERDETRARFESETH
SRR o FHBEEINER A MR
RMFEA e

FTERBREAHEEN PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
BERIBRERI SRR 1. Economic climate and individual market performance
HRIKRENREBAREBEZHEE As jewellery and diamonds are luxury consumer
oo ERIRE R KEIRIEY products, the impact of global financial and economic
HBEEEORBE hZEE conditions on consumer confidence and purchasing
MR EARAEE 2 HER power would affect sales and results of the Group.
N2 - REEM RIS EE The economic growth or decline in our geographical
BRIMELHEEKREH markets that affected consumer spending on jewellery
By BN ELREE would also affect our revenue of the Group. In
Z WS o IO - BB IRIR Al B addition, economic environment would affect the
HERBITEZEEMAE production cost of jewellery business such as rent,
WMie  FIWA  BRKE labour cost, packaging and transportation cost etc.
BIPAR T o
MELTE KEREAETE In property side, economic climate directly affects
MEEE REEHAEEY the value of properties and investors’ interest in
¥HEBzHBLHESIWA - our property projects and rental income. Rising
BREERAN ~ B TR RATRHE construction costs, labour costs and material prices
BEAYETETKYEER will affect the budget and the timing for completion
BrzEE KERExK- of the property projects.
FEBIRBEXEBFTERK The Group’s mining business requires substantial
W& BRVBEENTEHRM S investment and may not achieve expected financial
¥R -BAEREBAGETE results. The fluctuation in price of mineral ores may
RERI R MEREER 2 RE affect prospects of the investments and impairment
AR BRIBEEE 2 (h1E - £ of the mining business may affect the valuation of
TERELA R - B KRRk mining assets. The risk of loss of asset value such as
BEEESEEEBEEXRER impairment loss on mining right and property, plant
HRBIBEZEFEREN- and equipment is set out in the Chairman’s Statement

on page 13.

W i% Bk 2. Market risk

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such
as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
details are set out in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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T BB EEE FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FEUBEREEONET The financial key performance indicators are analysed as
below:
2018 2017 +(-)
FET FET 2E)
HK$'000 HK$000 Change
MBXEA FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Yz Revenue 391,882 627,293 -37.5%
EME(%) Gross profit margin (%) 19.8% 17.8% 2ppE 7
MR A SRS AT AN EBIT
([EBITJ) 442 141 114,788 285.2%
EBITEL % (%) EBIT margin (%) 112.8% 183% 94.5ppA D2
AARIHEBAEERH  Profit attributable to the owners
of the Company 354,759 98,306 260.9%
FERZE (%) Net profit margin (%) 90.5% 15.7% 74.8ppBE P&
1BE E 13 (%) Return on total assets (%) 12.7% 50% 7.7ppE N EH
TEMBER KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
RekBRe% R Cash and cash equivalents 1,128,664 374,648 201.3%
MEBEEFE Net current assets 715,794 423,547 69.0%
BERS Total assets 3,474,725 2,314,865 50.1%
EREEE: Total liabilities 1,230,442 470,400 161.6%
RITEK Bank loans 611,000 119,000 413.4%
ANREEA AFEIGHEZE  Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 2,250,685 1,850,863 21.6%
Betbx Cash ratio 1.61 1.61 -0.2%
MENL = (%) Current ratio (times) 2.02 2.82 -28.4%
BEABHE Gearing ratio 0.00 0.00 -
P B A 2 81 S (%) Return on shareholders equity (%) 15.8% 53% 10.5ppA 92
FRRERRF (BIL) Basic earnings per share
(HK cent) 5.19 1.44 260.4%
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group promotes environmental protection by
raising the employees’ awareness of resources saving
and efficient use of energy. In recent years, the
Group has implemented several policies to encourage
employees for saving energy and paper. All these
policies aim at reducing resources and saving costs
which are beneficial to the environment and meet the
commercial goals of the Group.

Operating Practices

The Group upholds high standards of operating
practices and complies with stringent jewellery
manufacturing standards. One of the subsidiaries
of the Company is a certified member of the
Responsible Jewellery Council (“RJC”). RIC is a not-
for-profit organization which promotes responsible
ethical, social and environmental practices, respect
human rights throughout the Diamond, Gold and
Platinum Group Metals jewellery supply chain. As
a certified member of the RIC, the subsidiary had
undergone independent, third party auditing to
show our business practices at all facilities within
the certification scope conform to RJC's Code of
Practices for business ethics, labour rights and working
conditions, social and environmental performance.
The Group has stringent requirements to maintain
high levels of quality control and responsible business
practices.

For further information about the environment
policies and performance of the Company during
the year, please refer to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules to be issued within
three months after the publication of this annual
report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
provides competitive remuneration packages to attract and
retain employees. The management regularly reviews the
Group's remuneration of its employees and ensures that it is
up to prevailing market standard.

The Group values mutually-beneficial and long-standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group
aims at delivering high quality products to its customers and
developing mutual trust with its suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2018, the Company’'s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$1,474,108,000 (2017:
HK$945,279,000).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
260.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$230,367.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 47.6% of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 18.7%. The largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 48.7% and 72.7%, respectively, of
the Group's total purchases for the year.

As far as the Directors of the Company are aware, neither
the Directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor (Chairman)

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki

Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Yam Tat Wing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank
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In accordance with Articles 109, 115(A) and 115(D) of
the Articles of Association, Dr. Chan, Mr. Victor Chan and
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank shall retire from office by rotation
and all of them are eligible for re-election at the AGM.

Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his
independence. The Board considers each of the four
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are available on the website of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to
32 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for directors’ and senior management’s liabilities
in respect of legal actions against its directors and senior
management arising from corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when the Directors'’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out on pages 20 to 23 and in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B OF THE
LISTING RULES

The remuneration package of the following directors
have been revised after taking consideration of their
responsibilities and the prevailing market rates:

With effect from 1 January 2018, the monthly remuneration
of Mr. Victor Chan, Dr. Chan, Ms. Vicki Chan and Mr. Wong
Edward Gwon-hing has been revised to HK$200,000,
HK$200,000, HK$90,000 and HK$118,000 respectively.
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MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report and
in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company’s holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the financial year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the interests
of directors of the Company in businesses which might
compete with the Group during the year ended 30 June
2018 and as at 30 June 2018 were as follows:

Dr. Chan, a Director of the Company, has held interest and
directorship in companies engaged in the same businesses
of property investments in Hong Kong and gold mining
activities in Sichuan Province of the PRC and Indonesia.
Although some of the businesses carried out by these
companies are similar to those of the Group, they are of
different scale and/or at different locations. Therefore, the
Board is of the view that the businesses of those companies
did not compete with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
set out below:

ERAF
21T
ARRAZEBREE BAERIL
Number of ordinary shares of the Company Percentage of
BA#E AGE 5 THEEE the Company's
Personal Corporate Underlying iy issued share
EEpE Name of Directors interest interest interest Total capital
i ([BE£])  Chan Wai Lap, Victor 2,700,000 - 30,000,000 32,700,000 0.48%
("Mr. Victor Chan") (P7E2) (Note 2)
BREEZ ([FRIZL])  Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 5,063,395,220 - 5,063,395,220 74.12%
("Dr. Chan") (F35E1) (Note 1)
B\ ([E44])  Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 5,063,395,220 - 5,063,395,220 74.12%
("Ms. Cheng") (Bi92E1) (Note 1)
R A Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 200,000 - - 200,000 0.003%
BREH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.44%
(B$5E2) (Note 2)
s Yam Tat Wing 2,400,000 - 20,000,000 22,400,000 0.33%
(FF5¥2) (Note 2)
EEE Wong Edward Gwon-hing - - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.44%

el 2SS RsmREL Bt R
R EWHR 2 AR Tamar

Investments Group Limited#% 4 ©

B2 - RSN R B
Rz AAAEERG % -

(B$5E2) (Note 2)

Note 1: Such interests are held by Tamar Investments Group Limited,

Note 2:

which is @ company wholly-owned by Dr. Chan, Ms. Cheng and

Mr. Victor Chan.

These interests represented the interests in underlying shares

of the Company in respect of share options granted to the

Directors.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Except as disclosed above, as at the reporting date, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no time during the year were the rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2018, no person, other than Mr. Victor Chan,
Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above, had registered
an interest in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in notes
44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of the significant events after the reporting date is set
out in note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint the auditor, BDO Limited.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 September 2018
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
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111 Connaught Road Central
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B5E : +852 2218 8288 FRETHERIER
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www.bdo.com.hk

To the members of Continental Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 259, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of mining right and related non-financial
assets

(Refer to notes 3.7, 3.8, 3.11, 4, 14, and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had carrying amounts (before
impairment) in relation to mining right and non-financial assets of
approximately HK$665.7 million and HK$40.4 million respectively
relating to one of the cash-generating units within the mining
operation segment (the “Mining CGU II”).
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Management has performed an impairment test in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies and concluded that there
are impairment losses of HK$42.0 million and HK$0.89 million
in respect of the mining right and in respect of the related non-
financial assets respectively for the year ended 30 June 2018.
Management appointed an independent valuation firm to estimate
the recoverable amount of the mining right and non-financial
assets attributable to the Mining CGU II using market approach
with reference to recent comparable transactions undertaken in the
mining industry.

We identified the impairment of mining right and non-financial
assets as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the selection of
recent comparable transactions involve significant judgment and
estimates with respect to the underlying market approach.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of mining right and non-financial assets attributable to
the Mining CGU Il included:

- evaluating the independent valuation firm’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the valuation methodology used by management
and the independent valuation firm;

- reviewing and challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions and critical judgment areas which underpin the
fair value estimation;

- engaging an auditor's expert to assist us to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and the
reasonableness of the inputs, assumptions and estimations
used by management and the independent valuation firm
which underpin the fair value estimation; and

- checking the accuracy and the relevance of the input data
used.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 3.9, 4 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The carrying value of the Group's investment properties at 30 June
2018 was HK$1,308.4 million. Investment properties are measured
at cost on initial recognition, and thereafter are carried at fair value,
with any changes therein recognised in profit or loss. During the
year ended 30 June 2018, the Group recognised a fair value gain
on its investment properties of HK$67.0 million. The valuation
of investment properties (including investment properties under
construction) is a significant judgment area and is underpinned by
a number of key assumptions. The Group carries out a valuation
of its investment properties on the following bases: (i) investment
properties under construction are valued by applying the residual
method, which is determined by deducting the estimated
construction and other professional costs to completion, including
cost of construction, professional fees, finance costs, associated
costs and an allowance for developer’s profit margin from the
gross development value; and (ii) completed investment properties
(individual unit) are valued using the direct comparison method. To
assist management in this difficult judgmental area, the Group uses
professionally qualified external valuer for the property valuation
exercise.

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because the valuation of investment properties can
be inherently subjective and requires significant judgment.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties
included:

- evaluating the independent valuation firm’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the valuation methodology used by management
and the independent valuation firm;

- reviewing and challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions and critical judgment areas which underpin the
fair value estimation; and

- checking the accuracy and the relevance of the input data
used.

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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REMM B M RRAENEE Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
(%) Financial Statements (continued)

WEBBHERBNEIEF  HPEEL From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
FHHNAGEMBRENETRAE those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
- B AR SR H1E B MEX consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
HENRE P ME L FEIE  RIEEED therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
ERAAF AR EELEIR  HIER auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
imE RAVERT - iR E B IE AR about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
WETBBAESHEXNNBEERBB determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
EXN ARG RPIRETEERS because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
B EIE be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BRUGESEAMEBRARAR BDO Limited

EEETAD Certified Public Accountants

REF Yu Tsui Fong

3£ % Z 47 57 P05440 Practising Certificate Number P05440
BE T N\FALAZTHIA Hong Kong, 24 September 2018
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For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE_Z-\FRA=THILFE

2018 2017
k=3 F#T FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
W & Revenue 6 391,882 627,293
5 AR Cost of sales (314,227) (515,776)
EA Gross profit 77,655 111,517
HE Ko KA Selling and distribution costs (14,662) (21,874)
1THE A Administrative expenses (80,930) (100,526)
E g A Other operating income 5,876 7,767
REMHERNTFEZE Change in fair value of investment
properties 16 67,017 700
AHEEZSRMEE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
BB EE financial assets 20 (984) (8,373)
iR EEE Impairment loss on mining right 17 (41,972) =
Y= - B KR AE Impairment loss on property,
BB R plant and equipment 14 (7,941) (23,374)
B S EIR B BB Income arising from amortising
FrEE 2 WA the financial guarantee liabilities 6,013 5,789
HEHEE 2 Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
TREEEE financial assets (198) =
VAR A7 A 2 At 2 R B Share-based compensation 38 = (2,140)
& — R B A Rz Was Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 47 - 22,291
HE—HEeEE 2 s Gain on disposal of a joint venture 19 363,206 =
=B ®N Finance costs 7 (12,308) (12,239)
IS S Share of results of joint ventures 69,061 123,011
F& BT 15 % 8 i3 71 Profit before income tax 8 429,833 102,549
FrS i Income tax expense 9 (75,078) (4,098)
F Wi F Profit for the year 354,755 98,451
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For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE-_ZT—/\FRA=THILFE

2018 2017
k=3 F#ET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Hitt = EU s R HIE Other comprehensive income,
net of tax
FEEMNEEEZZERH .  Item that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
SEHAELRIEF 2 A Surplus on revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings 14 - 36,385
HEAEMSPEZEEZZ Items that may be subsequently
IHH: reclassified to profit or loss:
AHEEZ S EELQF(EZ Change in fair value of
= available-for-sale financial assets 462 645
RAE L E 2 @R E EMER Redlassification from equity to
RiEaENHEEER profit or loss on impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets 984 620
REHEHEEZSBEER Redassification from equity to
RiEaENHEEER profit or loss on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets 198 -
R E—HE &b ERERR 2 Exchange reserve released upon
i 5, {7 disposal of a joint venture (44,682) =
BMEBINE R G ERZEZ  Exchange differences on translation
bE 5 =58 of foreign operations and joint
ventures 88,101 (17,117)
FRNHMEEYE IR FIE  Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 45,063 20,533
FRNEEWEHAE Total comprehensive income
for the year 399,818 118,984
FEAG & i Profit for the year attributable to:
PIN/NEIEZE DN Owners of the Company 354,759 98,306
FE 12 il 4 Non-controlling interests (4) 145
354,755 98,451
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For the year ended 30 June 2018
HEZZT—)/\EXA=THLFE
2018 2017
k=3 F#T FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
EiEENEEW SR Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
RRARHEB A Owners of the Company 399,822 118,839
FE 17 Il 4 2 Non-controlling interests (@) 145
399,818 118,984
EAREERE ANEMLENZ Earnings per share for profit
BRAER attributable to the owners A JENL
of the Company 11 HK cent HK cent
— &R — Basic 5.19 1.44
—#E — Diluted 5.19 1.44
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2018 2017
it F#T FHEIT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
EERARE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EREEE Non-current assets
M- WE RFE Property, plant and equipment 14 56,446 64,999
T Hb (R A Land use rights 15 32,398 32,908
TEY Investment properties 16 1,308,400 37,800
FRIERE Mining right 17 623,749 646,739
REeehE s En Interests in joint ventures 19 14,743 854,828
AtEHE s SREE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 14,385 15,285
R AR FEWGRIR Long-term receivables 21 = =
FEETHIBE = Deferred tax assets 35 5,762 5,762
2,055,883 1,658,321
RENEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 161,758 169,937
B 5 FE W8 Trade receivables 24 111,737 96,085
FENHIE Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
H fth pE U IR receivables 10,434 10,088
IAAFERTABRZ Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 25 6,066 5,770
FEW & & 1 FRIE Due from joint ventures 19 183 16
BehBeER Cash and cash equivalents 26 1,128,664 374,648
1,418,842 656,544
REAE Current liabilities
Z 5 e RRIB Trade payables 27 (54,922) (58,703)
HMENRIBERERER Other payables and accruals (34,650) (40,067)
RITERK Bank loans 28 (611,000) (119,000)
& B E Obligation under finance leases 29 (127) (377)
Rl NGIE O] Due to related companies 30 = (576)
PTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 31 - (143)
HEERaE Financial guarantee liabilities 32 = (7,216)
RGP R AR 2 B R Loan from a controlling shareholder 34 = (4,606)
TRIA R Provision for tax (2,349) (2,309)
(703,048) (232,997)
MENEERE Net current assets 715,794 423,547
BEERTHARE Total assets less current liabilities 2,771,677 2,081,868
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As at 30 June 2018
R-Z—\FXAZ+A

AREBARR R

2018 2017
it FETT FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
b A TH E AR Obligation under finance leases 29 (35) (314)
FEAS REE A | 5/08 Due to related companies 30 (33,793) (82,036)
S EREE Financial guarantee liabilities 32 = (9,921)
BERERARREZER Loan from ultimate holding company 33 (350,000) =
TR AR R IRt 2 B3 Loan from a controlling shareholder 34 (4,742) =
BEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 35 (138,824) (145,132)
(527,394) (237,403)
EEFE Net assets 2,244,283 1,844,465
W EQUITY
(&N Share capital 36 560,673 560,673
{8 Reserves 37 1,690,012 1,290,190
AARHEE ANEGES Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 2,250,685 1,850,863
JEREHIE = Non-controlling interests (6,402) (6,398)
S Total equity 2,244,283 1,844,465
RERESE On behalf of the Directors
R {2 3L Chan Wai Lap, Victor
=5 Director
fREE = Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
=F Director
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2018 2017
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REXEBHERE Cash flows from operating activities
[ BT 15 58 A gt A Profit before income tax 429,833 102,549
ERTIERFE: Adjustments for:
R R AN Finance costs 12,308 12,239
HE—HeErE s Gain on disposal of a joint venture (363,206) =
e EtEXEE Share of results of joint ventures (69,061) (123,011)
VAR 17 A 2 2 R Share-based compensation = 2,140
Y R E KRR ETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 4,808 5,668
—+ i {55 PR AR 4 Amortisation of land use rights 1,383 1,349
BRI 5N Amortisation of mining right - 656
KB EEE Impairment loss of mining right 41,972 =
GFERE Provision for inventories 9,747 6,593
2 5 FEWRIA R Provision for trade receivables 1,839 220
AIHEEZERMEE Impairment loss on available-for-
B E5 18 sale financial assets 984 8,373
HEAHEHEZSREE Y Loss on disposal of available-for-
518 sale financial assets 198 =
VI B MR REEIE  Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 7,941 23,374
HE—RHB ARz W= Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = (22,291)
LEWE WEREEC (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,
(Wzk) /E518 plant and equipment (3,008) 4
WEEYZE - BB KR Write-off of property,
plant and equipment 464 4,859
S EREBEBEMESZ  Income arising from amortising
A the financial guarantee liabilities (6,013) (5,789)
M ERAERIERER Income arising from derecognition
FrE%£ 2 WA of financial guarantee liabilities - (4,377)
KEMEAFEZE Change in fair value of
investment properties (67,017) (700)
—M& & RFERIEEM ZE1E  Loss on de-registration of
a joint venture 5 -
MTESMTAEZAFEREE  Fair value loss on derivative
financial instruments 37 149
BIRE N (k) B8 Unrealised foreign exchange
(gain)/loss (1,140) 1,350
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For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE_Z-\FRA=THILLFE

2018 2017
k23 F#ETT FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BELZSEHIZEEERN  Operating profit before
working capital changes 2,074 13,355
FE (#&Em), md (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (1,261) 44,788
B 5 W GRIB I N Increase in trade receivables (17,482) (3,293)
TEFIA  Re Rk (Increase)/Decrease in prepayments,
E A EUGRIB (8500) 84> deposits and other receivables (262) 7,052
ARAFEGT AEB®Z Increase in financial assets
S RVEEE N at fair value through profit or loss (296) (1,548)
BRPYER D Decrease in property under
development - 89,811
FEIE & FERIR (Increase)/Decrease in amounts
(#hn) R due from joint ventures (167) 151
H 5 K& H th e 5/ I8 K& Decrease in trade and other
FEET & AR A payables and accruals (9,913) (100,751)
MESmI A Changes in derivative
financial instruments (180) 93
e (A /EExZ2RE Cash (used in)/generated
from operations (27,487) 49,658
[=ERENSS Interest paid (15,435) (9,580)
B B TSR PRC enterprise income tax paid (85,842) (138)
EENEY RIS Hong Kong profits tax paid = 3)
BEER (TH) E£Z Net cash (used in)/generated
HEFHE from operating activities (128,764) 39,937
BRERHRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
NEWE  WE &R Additions to property,
plant and equipment (3,547) (6,449)
NBEREWE Additions to investment properties (12,232) (4,106)
HE—HNBARZ Net cash inflows from
RERMAFEE disposal of a subsidiary 47 - 981,747
HE—HeEtEZ Net proceeds from disposal of
FrS 718558 a joint venture 19 1,303,926 =
HEME  HERFEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fri5 kI8 plant and equipment 3,590 25
HEAIHEHEZSMEEL  Proceeds from disposal of available-
FriS 538 for-sale financial assets 1,362 =
U B8 —REIFT B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 46 (1,179,883) =
BT —MEEREZEFIEMN Increase in loans to a joint venture (14,500) (11,500)
R—EEErEER Interest in a joint venture (39) -
REZBELEZHEFH Net cash generated
from investing activities 98,677 959,717
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2018 2017
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$000
MEFBRERE Cash flow from financing
activities
TR IR R IR 2 B Loan from controlling shareholder 50,000 =
EE —RIERIRRBR Repayment to a controlling
shareholder (50,000) (127,000)
BRERARRE 2 ER Loan from ultimate holding company 350,000 =
EE—HEEQRTRNK Repayment to a related company (58,170) (90,000)
EE R EHEAE Repayment of obligation under
finance leases (552) (421)
WiE—FRE AR 2 Acquisition of non-controlling
FE 12 il 4 2 interests of a subsidiary = (600)
FTILIRITERK New bank loans 612,000 10,000
BEIIRITER Repayment of bank loans (120,000) (462,548)
HEEHEL ()2 Net cash generated from/(used in)
HEFH financing activities 783,278 (670,569)
RERREEHENZER Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 753,191 329,085
ENZRERREER Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 374,648 45,632
IVSEREH Y B Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net 825 (69)
ERZAERBAEEH Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 1,128,664 374,648




For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE_Z—\FRA=ZTHLFE

=

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity m &%

N2 gxy

EE S

RAAREAEGER
Equity attibutable to the owners of the Company
BRE  FI9R EXR®  EEsf  REEH FI5)
e & RE  EbER  TERR 6 & B REEA it B EpER
Share Non- Capita Exchange Asets Investment Non-
Share opfion ~ distrbutable Other  contrbution  fluctuation  revluation  revaluation Retained controling Total
capial fesene fesene fesene fesene Tesene fesene fesene pofits Totd inferets equty
7ET & AT 8T FET AT 78T AT 7T A AT &
HS 000 S0 Hs000 HS000 HS000 Hs000 HS000 HS 000 S0 HS000 HS000 HS 000
RIF-RELA-RZER Balance at 1 July 2016 560673 4269 273606 (5397) 28567 (21,38) - 6,583 8318 1730097 (6156) 1723940
RivaERZEH Recogniton of shere-based compensation (note 38)
#=1N) = 2140 = = = = = = = 2,140 - 2140
WE-EHBLAZELHES  Acuiston of noncontoling
interest in a subsidiary - - - 13 - - - - - (213 (381) (600)
BRAEALES Transactions with owners - 2140 - ) - - - - - 197 38) 1540
ERiEH Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 98306 98306 145 98451
Lb2ENE: Other comprehensive income:
AREEsSREELTEIE  Change nfair vale of avalable-forsale financl
i asets, net - - - - - - - 645 - 645 - 645
R E S RERRER Redlasfication from equity to proft or loss
HERENAREER on impaiment on avalble-forsale
(W=t finandal assets note 20) - - - - - - - 620 - 620 - 620
ERRETHRET AR Surplus on revaluation ofleasehold land and buldings
(Witm) (note 14) o o = = = = 36,385 = = 36,385 - 36,385
GENEBR Exchange differences on trandlation of foreign
REREERZE operations and jont ventures - - - - - (17,17) - - - (17117 - (17.117)
EREENALE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 1717 36,38 1,265 93306 118839 145 118,984
RIF-LERAZTAZER  Balanceat30 June 2017 560673 6409°  273606* (5610 28567 (38503 36,385 1848 91488 1850863 (6398) 1844465
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FAARENERER
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
BRiE FARE (3] REEfR BEER F84
k% i i HfphE  TERE Ei L1 ] #E  REEH o [ I
Share Non- Capital ~ Exchange Assets  Investment Non-
Share option  distributable Other contribution  fluctuation  revaluation revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve eserve reserve reserve eserve reserve profits Total interests equity

FEr FEr FET FET FEr FET FET FEr FET FET FEr FEr
HKSO00  KKSUDO  HKSUOD  KKSOOO  HKSUOD  HKSOOO  HKSUDD  HKSOOD  KKSUDO  HKSOOD  KKSOWO  HKSUOD

R-Z-tELR-RZER Balance at 1 July 2017 560,673 6409 213,606 (5,610) 28567 (38,503) 36,385 7848 981,488 1850863 (63%) 1844465
L4 Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 354,759 354,759 (1] 354,755
LfpdaEkE: Other comprehensive income:
REEISREELTEIEY  Change nfai vaue of avalable-forsale financel
58 asels, et - - - - - - - 16 - 16 - {'7]
AT E SRARRER Reclassfication from equity to proft o loss
HERENIEEER on impairment on avallble-forsale
(Wit=1) financia assets note 20) o o o = o o a 9%4 o 984 o 94
REETHLE, SHERR Reclassfication from equity to proft o loss
HERENAEZES on disposal of avalableforsle
financial assets - - - - - - - 19 - 198 - 198
Exchange resenve released upon
disposal of  jint venture - - - - - (44,682) - - - (44,682) - (44,682)
Exchange differences on transltion of foreign
operations and joint ventures - - - - - 88,101 - - - 8,101 - 88,101
EREERELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 23419 - 1,644 354,759 399,822 (1) 399,818
RIF-N\ERAZTRZER Balance at 30 June 2018 560,673 6,409 273,606* (5,610 28567 4916 36,385 9492 133647 2250685 (6402) 2244283
& ZEFBERIERE M BT e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
2 #REERE1,690,012,0008 7T (=& HK$1,690,012,000 (2017: HK$1,290,190,000) in the consolidated
—+%:1,290,190,000% 7T ) ° statement of financial position.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong. The address of the Company’s registered office and
principal place of business is Flats M & N, 1st Floor, Kaiser
Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment

— Mining operation

— Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Group Limited
("Tamar Investments”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to
259 have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
terms include all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2017

The Group has adopted the following new or revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant
to its operations and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2017.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 12,
to HKFRSs Disclosure of Interests in
2014-2016 Cycle Other Entities

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the note to the
consolidated statement of cash flows, note 48.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2017 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured at fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact
on these consolidated financial statements as the
clarified treatment is consistent with the manner in
which the Group has previously recognised deferred
tax assets.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2017 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to clarify
that the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12, other
than the requirements to disclose summarised
financial information, also apply to an entity’s
interests in other entities classified as held for sale
or discontinued operations in accordance with
HKFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12
has no impact on these consolidated financial
statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group's financial statements, that
have been issued, but are not yet effective in the
financial year of which the consolidated financial
statements were prepared, have not been early
adopted by the Group.

Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 3
to HKFRSs Business Combinations,
2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs?

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associate
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to Investment Property — Transfers
HKAS 40 of Investment Property!

Amendments to Classification and Measurement
HKFRS 2 of Share-Based Payment

Transactions'

Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation?
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with
HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarification to
HKFRS 15)!
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

The amendments were originally intended to
be effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business, the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business, the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture or
associate.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in
Assoclate and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in
an associate or joint venture to which the equity
method is applied and does not include long-term
interests that in substance form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture, to which
the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28,
including the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment,
which includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint
venture and impairment of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40 — Investment Property —
Transters of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change
in use and provides guidance on making this
determination. The clarification states that a change
of use will occur when a property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property and
there is supporting evidence that a change has
occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of
evidence in the standard as a non-exhaustive list,
thereby allowing for other forms of evidence to
support a transfer.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled
share-based payments; share-based payment
transactions with a net settlement feature for
withholding tax obligations; and a modification to
the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
that changes the classification of the transaction
from cash-settled to equity-settled.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are
met — instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (the contractual cash flow characteristics
test) are generally measured at amortised cost.
Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if the objective
of the entity’s business model is both to hold and
collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
and equity instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE_Z-\FRA=THILFE

= RNEBMBEHREE
8] )

(b)

C AR B & R A2 7]
REBET B BMBIREE
Al (&)

BB R FE9
H—2@ITA (&)

&I 5 s R B9
A IEFE AR FERT AR
B AFTEZFAETR
BEMAFTOEMERR
BEE - UBRKEE G
ERFEIRLEELEE
1BRE - WA —R

HHhEERE REEBR

B TSR A S 4 3 o R L
[\ b & 3R JE &

BRI REERFENR
HEREBETERE39
e BEER 28
METERTE  HEREED
BRUAAFEFARGEZ
TRBENS ZAEBEZ
EERREMSIBZA
Y EEHSESEEM
2 HURERER  BRIFLLE
SERHBRLEAG
oo ltsh BEMBHRS
EREIRREETLES
ZERIE395% A B X 1L 7E
REMEERTRAGBZ
ME

BREMAEEMBREE
AIERAIRE R E A K E
TREEZONELE-

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at fair
value through profit or loss replacing the incurred
loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, where the amount of change in
fair value attributable to change in credit risk of
the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

Application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have
impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company made an assessment
on the financial impact of the Group’s financial
statements resulting from the adoption of HKFRS
9. The directors of the Company do not expect the
adoption of HKFRS 9 to have a significant impact on
the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities except for
investments currently held as available-for-sale
financial assets.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, all these investments
have to be measured at fair values with changes in
fair values recognised in profit or loss, unless the
equity investments are not held for trading, in which
case the Group can designate them as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

The classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9
requires the fair value change of a financial liability
designated at fair value through profit or loss that
is attributable to changes of that financial liability's
credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive
income (without reclassification to profit or loss). The
Group currently does not have any financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
therefore this new requirement will not have any
impact on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.
The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the expected
credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for
a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is
recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise
and measure either a 12 — month expected credit
loss or a lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
the asset and the facts and circumstances. While the
Group has not yet completed a detailed assessment
of how its impairment provisions would be affected
by the new model, the Group expects that the
application of the expected credit loss model may
result in earlier recognition of credit losses.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption
of the new standard.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of
the framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and related
interpretations.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or services in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:
(@) when the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs; (b) when the
entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or
(c) when the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS
15, the entity recognise revenue for the sale of that
good or service at a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the indicators that will
be considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment and considered that the new revenue
standard is not likely to have significant impact on
how it recognises revenue from the sales of goods.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use
asset and the lease liability are initially measured on
a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under
the predecessor standard, HKAS 17. In respect of
the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

As set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, total operating lease commitment of the
Group in respect of land and buildings as at 30 June
2018 amounted to HK$4,510,000. The directors of
the Company do not expect the adoption of HKFRS
16 as compared with the current accounting policy
would result in a significant impact on the Group’s
results but it is expected that certain portion of these
lease commitments will be required to be recognised
in the form of an asset (for the right-of-use) and a
financial liability (for the payment obligation) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

HK(FRIC) — Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an
exchange rate to use for transactions that involve
advance consideration paid or received in a foreign
currency and the recognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability. The Interpretation
specifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part thereof) is the date on which the
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance
over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The entity shall also assume the tax authority will
examine amounts that it has a right to examine and
have full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Save as disclosed in the foregoing paragraphs about
the impact of HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16 to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have also performed an
assessment on other new standards, amendments
and interpretations, and have concluded on a
preliminary basis that other new standards and
amendments would not have a significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements in
subsequent years.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial assets
and liabilities, which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management's best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up
to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.

ul
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recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

33

34

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements
are present: power over the investee, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies. In consolidated
financial statements, associates are accounted for
using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor's share in the associate’s
profits or losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate and the entire carrying amount of
the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.

O
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The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers
joint control over the relevant activities of the
arrangement to the Group and at least one other
party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement;
or

Joint operations: where the Group has both
the rights to assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;
The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;
The contractual terms of the joint

arrangement agreement; and

Any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Joint arrangements (continued)

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amounts are
adjusted for the Group's share of post-acquisition
changes in the joint ventures’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the
joint venture are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses. Profits or
losses arising on the transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
venture. The investors’ share in the joint venture's
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the joint
venture. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the assets transferred they are
recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in a joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

The Company's interests in joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint
ventures are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from the
Group’s presentation currency, have been converted
into HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange fluctuation reserve in equity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost, which
comprise purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note
3.11). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other than mining structures, depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Factory buildings Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 25 years,
whichever is shorter
Commercial buildings Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 33 years,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 4 years,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 17% - 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

Depreciation on mining structures is provided to
write off the cost of the mining structure using units-
of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves of the ore mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values
and useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
on retirement or disposal of an asset of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised on the units-of-production method based
on the total proven and probable reserves of the ore
mines.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the reporting date and its fair value cannot
be reliably determined at that time. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and the nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10

3.1

Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments made
to acquire land held under an operating lease. They
are stated at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
determination if an arrangement is or contains a
lease and the lease is an operating lease is detailed
in note 3.17. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease/right
of use except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived by the Group from use of the land.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
mining right, interests in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are subject to impairment testing.
They are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

~l
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Any impairment loss is charged
pro-rata to the assets in the CGU, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- Loans and receivables

- Available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. A regular way purchase is a purchase
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Xe)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the

rights to receive cash flows from the investments

expire or are transferred and substantially all of

the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed

to assess whether there is objective evidence of

impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment

loss is determined and recognised based on the

classification of the financial assets.

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments
or financial guarantee contracts.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or

it is clear that separation of the embedded

derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise

arise from measuring the assets or

recognising gains or losses on them

on a different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of
financial assets which are managed

and their performance is evaluated

on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management
strategy and information about the
group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key

management personnel; or
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

(@

(ir)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
Joss (continued)

- the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payment that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are
either designated to this category or do
not qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets. All financial
assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising
from a change in the fair value excluding any
dividend and interest income is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the investment
revaluation reserve in equity, except for
impairment losses (see the policy below)
and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses
at each reporting date subsequent to initial
recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

3 significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organisation;

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

o a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

(@

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

(ir)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an
amount is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss as impairment
loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

~
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-
sale are not recognised in profit or loss.
The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of
impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment that
is carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

3.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on the estimated selling prices in the ordinary
course of business less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

The cost of property under development comprises
the acquisition cost of land, construction costs,
professional fees, other direct expenses and
capitalised borrowing costs (see note 3.23).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand and demand deposits.

Financial liabilities

The Group’'s financial liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts
due to related companies, financial guarantee
liabilities, loan from a controlling shareholder, loan
from ultimate holding company, obligation under
financial leases, bank loans and derivative financial
instruments.

\e)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
3.23).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

() Bank loans

Bank loans are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bank
loans are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.



Annual Report 2018 “F
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE-_ZT—/\FRA=THILFE

- EEER

el

BUREL = 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

(&) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
315 £@asd (&) 3.15 Financial liabilities (continued)
() RITEN (&) 0] Bank loans (continued)

RITERBER/RD

BE BRIELAKEE

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
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to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

(i) HEHEENKE (i) Finance lease payables
BhE A S e RIB IR Finance lease payables are measured at
N EEBREAEER initial value less the capital element of lease
ZBRILERFT=E - repayments.

(i) Bz d 8 & (174 (i) Other financial liabilities other than derivative
2 TARI) financial instruments
Hih e EIFig They are recognised initially at their fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly
to profit or loss for the year.

Lease

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

Lease (continued)

Assets acquired under finance lease

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance lease, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
is included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments
less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Lease (continued)

Assets leased under operating leases as the lessees

The total rental payable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The up-front payments are amortised over the lease
period on a straight-line basis and the amortisation
is charges to profit or loss. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

Share capital

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap.622, shares of the Company do not have a
nominal value. Considerations received or receivable
for the issue of shares on or after 3 March 2014 is
credited to share capital. Commissions and expenses
are allowed to be deducted from share capital under
S.148 and S.149 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods, net of rebates and discounts. Provided that
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:

0] sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold. This is usually taken at the
time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods;
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii) sale of property is recognised when the

significant risks and rewards of ownership

of the property have been transferred to the

purchasers and the Group retains neither

continuing involvement to the degree usually

associated with ownership nor effective

control over property under development.

The transfer of risks and rewards of

ownership is evidenced by the passing of

possession of properties to the purchaser

when properties’ hand-over confirmation is

executed by the Group and the purchaser.

Deposits and disbursements received on

properties sold prior to the date of revenue

are included in the consolidated statement of

financial position under deposits received;

(iii) rental income, on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms;

(iv) interest income, on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method; and

(v) dividend income, when the shareholder’s

right to receive payment is established.
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=5 ERTBURE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
(/?E) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
321 EEEA 3.21 Employee benefits
RIKIEF Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
left the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the
Group’s employer contributions vested fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China except Hong
Kong and Macau (“Mainland China”) are required
to participate in a retirement benefits scheme (the
“RB Scheme"”) operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
RB Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the RB Scheme is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the
RB Scheme. Contributions under the RB Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable
to these plans.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

O
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

Share-based compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

Share-based compensation (continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in reserve will
be transferred to share capital. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary differences arising from initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
|loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income. Where the consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group's policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 3.18 if
and when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount, i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26

3.27

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major line of business.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27 Segment reporting (continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and
trading of fine jewellery and diamonds

— Property investment

- Mining operation

- Investment

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that certain finance
costs, income tax expense and corporate income and
expenses which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment, are not
included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27

3.28

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment assets include all assets but cash and cash
equivalents and deferred tax assets. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment
are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude bank loans, loan from
a controlling shareholder, financial guarantee
liabilities, provision for tax, deferred tax liabilities
and corporate liabilities, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

0] has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.

(o)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(ii)

(iif)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE-_ZT—/\FRA=THILFE

Annual Report 2018 “F

e TSR MR

(b)

() ZEBAAE
B EHAEE
EREZER
HEBBFIR
N2 BB EAE
FMEtEl -

>
H,_ -
HE
ZF
I
g
Eoal
FoleE

B I

fi

o

)
o
it

m N e mg e
H N

e
IR
e
-

(vii)FZ B B8 sk H P
BEE 2 EM
[PA="NGIIEE:N
EEFEARF]
AST/NEIE L
FEETEAE
AR %5

n

ﬂ%
)

/

>i
y

}?

o

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply: (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services
to the Group or to the Company's
parent.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimated fair value of investment properties

As at the reporting date, the Group’s investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by
an independent qualified professional valuer. In determining
the fair value, the valuer has based its valuation on direct
comparison or the residual method, as appropriate for
respective investment properties, which involves certain
estimates, including comparable market transactions,
estimated gross development value, estimated cost of
development and allowance of profit that duly reflected
developer’s risk associated with the development, as
appropriate. In relying on the valuation, management has
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the methods
of valuation adopted are appropriate for the relevant
property and reflective of current market conditions.

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the duration
and extent to which the fair value of specific investment
is less than its cost are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness, the collateral security
and the past collection history of each customer. The
management of the Group reassesses the estimation at the
reporting date.

When the Group’s management determines the receivables
from customers are uncollectable, they are written off
against the provision made. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group, on whose account provision
for impairment has been made, were improved and no
impairment of their ability to make payments were noted,
reversal of provision for impairment may be required.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Where an indicator of impairment exists,
a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made,
which is considered to be the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. All non-financial assets
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy
as disclosed in note 3.11. In carrying out the impairment
assessment of mining right and related non-financial assets,
the directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique. Where appropriate, the valuation is
estimated by independent professional valuer based on
recent comparable transactions undertaken in the mining
industry which generally represent the best estimate of
the recoverable amount of the non-financial assets. Any
changes in economic conditions and mineral prices and
the availability of comparable transactions may materiality
affect the estimation of the recoverable amount of the non-
financial assets.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

ul
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Amortisation of mining right and depreciation of
mining structures

Mining right and mining structures are amortised/
depreciated on the units of production method based
on the total proven and probable mineral reserves of the
ore mines. The directors of the Company exercised their
judgement in estimating the total proven and probable
reserves of the ore mines.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made. During the year ended 30 June
2018, People’s Republic of China (“PRC") enterprise income
tax expense of HK$85,719,000 arising from the disposal
of a joint venture was estimated according to the notice of
the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC [2017] No.
37. Such estimation is subject to the final tax outcome as
determined by the relevant tax authority in the PRC.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expenses in the periods in which such
estimate is changed. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
consolidated financial statements require measurement at,
or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised into
different levels based on how observable the inputs used in
the valuation technique utilised are:

o F1E: HRABEAREEMSZ . Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
WRE CREHE) identical items (unadjusted);

o F2E: EEIBEVBERZEH . Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
ANE(TBRESIEZH other than Level 1 inputs;
INEVE

o F3E: EEBEZHAEE 0 Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
TIFEMHEE) o from market data).

~l
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers
of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair values:

o Investment properties

Available-for-sale financial assets

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

. Derivative financial instruments

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the items above, please refer to note 16
and note 49.5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to assess performance and allocate resources.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Company’s executive directors. The executive directors
have identified the Group's four business lines as operating
segments as further described in note 3.27. Certain
comparative figures on the measurement of the segment
results and segment assets have been represented to
conform the current year’s presentation.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

a2 BRR

Business segment

REXHEHRER NERE RBEH %% ba
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and
diamonds Property investment Mining operation Investment Consolidated
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
f#r  FEr  Fér  TET  fEr FEr  Fér TR FEr TEn
HKSO00 — HKSUOO  HKSO0D  HKSUO0  HKSODD  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOO
(@e5) (&E31)
(represented) (represented)
Al Seqment revenue:
HETIREE/ Seles tolrevenue from external parties
RENARP & 386,262 483,084 92 133500 - 8,981 4,708 1728 391882 627293
ABEE Seqment results 152 (1209) 490930 163,130 (60747)  (37.351) 37 (6319) 437326 107362
WRGBZER 2B Share-based compensation -
AATMA Unallocated income - 4317
AR Unallocated expenses B11)  em)
ABERAEEE  Incomearsig fiom amorting the
HEEZHA financal quarantee fabiltes 6,013 5,789
BAKK Finance costs (103%)  (10,119)
REARAEH Proft before income tax 09833 102549

\e)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

B (E (a)  Business segment (continued)
Rt HE RER
REXHENRAR ESE REEH ng &a
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and
diamonds Property investment Mining operation Investment Consolidated
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
fér  TEr  FEr  FEr  TEr FEr Fér AT fEr TEr
HKSO0D — HKSUO0  HKSO0D  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSUOD  HKSOO0  HKSUOD  HKSOOD
(&25)) (&551) (&231)
(represented) (represented) (represented)
AHEE Seqment assefs 313380 306757 1308432 892660 682,267 713541 35,269 N4 2339348 1,934,184
RERHLEE Cash and cash equivalents 1128664 374648
BREHEEE Deferred tax assets 5,762 5,762
AARATEE Unallocated corporate assets 951 m
BEEE Total assets 344725 2314865
P8R Seqrent liabilies 76,129 88459 350488 E} 41,564 37444 1561 51585 469742 171522
FER Bank loans 611000 119,000
BRBRREZES  Loan fom a contoling shareholder 4,18 4,606
HHEREE Financil quarantee [iabltes -y
HERE Provision for tax 2309 2309
EEREAR Deferred tax abltes 138824 145132
AARATRE Unallocated corporate fbilfes 3,785 4,694
8BS Toallabiites 130442 470400
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(@) HXBoE (& (@)  Business segment (continued)

a2 BRR

REGREHRAR NERE ROEH %% &a
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and
diamonds Property investment Mining operation Investment Consolidated

w8 N7 0@ 00 W18 07 W N7 08 00
FEr  7Er  fEr TEr  fEr  TEr  fEr AL fEr TR
HKSO00 HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSODD HKSUMD AKSODD  HKSUD HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSURD

(827)) (&3))
(represented) (represented)
EfhAPEH: Other seqment information:
0 BRERZENE  Depredaton of property
plant and equipment (4,048) 4502) - - (760) (1,166) - - (4,808) (5,608)
T REEY Amortisaton of land use rights (107) (109 - - (6 (1240 - - (138)) (1349
WEEEY Amortisation of mining right = = - = = (656) = = = (656)
RENELNTEZES Change infair vaue of
investment properties - 700 67,017 - - - - - 67,017 700
fiEeBIAL Fair value loss on derivatve financial
ATEER insruments (1) (149) - - - - - - (37) (149)
IATEFABRZ  Fairvalue gain on finandial assets
SREEZATENE  atfairvalue through profit orloss - - - - - - 2% 1,548 26 1548
HEME FRERREZ GanlLoss) on disposal of property
%/ (B8) plant and equipment 3,008 ) - - - - - - 3,008 (o)
fisnE BERRE  Witeoff of property,
plant and equipment (464) (2974 - - - (1.885) - - (464) 4859
HE-RMBARZ  Ganon disposal of asubsidary
L6y - - -2 - - - - -
HE-RAEREZ  Gainondiposal of ajoint venture
LGy - -6 - - - - - 363206 -
THHEZSHEE  Impaiment logs on avalable-forsale
REEE financial assets - - - - - - (89 (8373 (088 (8373
HEFHLES Loss on disposal of avalable-for<ale
SREEER financial assets - - - - - = (199) - (199) =
EEEERRRE  Share of esults of foint ventures - B 5 A VE - - 204 - 69061 123011
RRENEER Impaiment oss on mining right - - - - W) - - - (wem) -
YEN TN Impairment loss on praperty
FEREEE plant and equipment - - - - 1o8) (33714 - - (roa1) (33714
FEER Provision for inventories ©74)  659) - - - - - - M) 659
ZHENGUERE  Povision for trade receivables (1,839) (220 - = = = = = (1.839) (220
HSRA Intrest income - - - - - - 436 1321 43 137
HER% Interest expenses - - - - 19 ) - - 19 )
REFRGAWEE  Addiions to non-curent
segments assets U 30 12232 4,106 323 338 - - 15,779 10,555




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE_Z-\FRA=THILFE

AN
N

PR ERAR FYRE

i PEER &)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) HEER (b)  Geographic information
AEERBINATF Z The Group's segment revenue from external
DEREEREIEREE customers and its non-current assets (other than
E(emTAREERE financial instruments and deferred tax assets) are
BERIN D R/LATH divided into the following geographical areas.
15 o
REMAERZWE
Revenue from
external customers
2018 2017
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BE (EBAEH) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 37,992 181,026
M North America 194,714 200,245
BOM R AR Europe and Middle East 148,931 221,312
E th 3 (= Other locations 10,245 24,710
a&t Total 391,882 627,293
ERBEE
Non-current assets
2018 2017
F#T FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
BB (EBAMEH) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 1,328,634 45,812
ES United Kingdom 3,730 3,724
IEiPN 175 Mainland China 703,372 1,587,738
E i@ Other locations = -
A&t Total 2,035,736 1,637,274
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Geographic information (continued)

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers. The geographical location
of the non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) is based on the
physical location of the assets.

The executive directors determine the Group is
domiciled in Hong Kong, which is the location of the
Group's principal office.

Information about major customers
Revenue from each of the major customers, which

amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is
set out below:

2018 2017

FET FHET

HK$000 HK$'000

BEPH Customer A* 72,341 TNEA NA
mE Customer B* 65,496 NEA N/A
* REMEEP 2 W @ The revenue from two customers were all
2ERB N ERET derived by the segment engaging in design,

B HEREEK manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine
EEMREARZD jewellery and diamonds. For the year ended 30

WoBE—T %
ARA=TELER-
B AREY
i E10% ©

June 2017, there was no customer contributing

over 10% of the Group's revenue.
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6. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, sale of
property under development, rental income, interest income
and dividend income from investments.

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

2018 2017

FiET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

HESm Sale of goods 386,262 483,084
HE SR Sale of gold ores - 8,981
SHEZRP Y Sale of property under development = 133,500
He A Rental income 912 -
2 A Interest income 4,326 1,327
"EZRBEWA Dividend income from investments 382 401
391,882 627,293
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7. FINANCE COSTS

2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERX: Interest charges on:
RITEN Bank loans 11,192 7,913
BRI A RHRMH ZEFKZ  Interest expenses on loan from
FEFZ ultimate holding company 3,758 =
ERBRREHECERZ Interest expenses on loan from
FMEFXZ a controlling shareholder 485 797
e —ERERARREL Interest expenses on amount due to
M ERX a related company - 870
BMEREREC HEER Finance charges on obligation under
finance leases 23 42
JESREE A RIGKIEFTEA Y Imputed interest expenses arising from
FE 55 F) B 5 52 amounts due to related companies 8,428 4,938
BREBEKA Total borrowing costs 23,886 14,560
W TYIIBE AR ZFE . Less: interests capitalised in:
— R EYZE (F3ET75) — investment properties (note 16) (11,578) (794)
—BRPYE — property under development
(HsF=+=) (note 22) - (1,527)
12,308 12,239

ul
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8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

BakHEME2EKRERZ
[HHERA] A

BT EERBEITIMIMmE
TEEBERER(ZE—+t
FOIFME LR (EE
[B) YER 2 5RI8 - b Th R AR
SE-RHNBAREZEE
TR ZIEE) - A R B I &
RBITIRMERHAEIR

2018 2017
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
RNEBZBRATERAGEFTS  The Group's profit before

eIk, (FFA) AT IEE income tax is arrived at

EE after charging/(crediting):

BEEHTFERA Cost of inventories sold 290,049 489,294
M- BWERZETE Depreciation of property,

(MIEE+mM) plant and equipment (note 14) 4,808 5,668
ZEEN N & Auditor’s remuneration 1,877 960
T fFAAE# S (3 +3)  Amortisation of land use rights

(note 15) 1,383 1,349
RIERE#E (HE+t) Amortisation of mining right (note 17) = 656
THREFEEHE Minimum lease payments under
IR E R operating leases on land and
buildings 2,875 3,628
FEREE Provision for inventories* 9,747 6,593
AT EFFAERZ Fair value gain on financial assets

TREEZAFEYE at fair value through profit or loss (296) (1,548)
MTESMTAEY Fair value loss on derivative financial

NHEBE instruments

—REIEEESH — forward currency contracts 37 149
JRIE N (Uss) B8 Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss (2,939) 2,185
HEME  HERFZHEZ (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,

(Wz) /18 plant and equipment (3,008) 4
MG EREERIEER Income arising from derecognition of

FEE £ 2 A financial guarantee liabilities = (4,377)
BT B Government grants* (176) 472)
B 5 e W Ia R E Provision for trade receivables 1,839 220
WEEYI 2 - R kR Write-off of property, plant and

equipment 464 4,859
—Mla = EERIETEM 2R Loss on de-registration of

a joint venture 5 -
L FRZIFERBR T AKRE & Provision for inventories for the year was included in “cost

of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Government grants are mainly received from ;T P93 T
EBEERER (2017 ) ITPIMEIREE(RESS) for one
of the Group's subsidiaries in respect of business activities
carried on in this area. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies related to these grants.
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EBFEBRIIARNEERES
EEZ T ER B s M IR R X
16.5% (= Z—+4:16.5% )
FTE o Hofth 3 [ FE R B T2 B
BRASBKEERAEZAE
EERIBFEEAHETE  WiR
BZERVEER ZFITEN - 32

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits

assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable

rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and

practices in respect thereof.

EREFIEL -
2018 2017
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BVERFR IR Current tax
BB Hong Kong 4 4,546
o PRC* 85,719 4
EEE (BEEEE) (Over)/Under provision in prior years
BiET R (77) 121
85,646 4,671
RIEFIE (IE=+5) Deferred tax (note 35)
REE Current year (10,568) (573)
FriS B x #E Total income tax expense 75,078 4,098
* HE-ZT—)/\FA=TH & During the year ended 30 June 2018, PRC enterprise

IEFEREHE—HEED
% (MizE+N) 2P BB ZERT
18 i B 385,719,000 7T T3
HRERMBERHAE2017
FEIIRHE - FRAMGEA
15 FR B A A 750 TS M A 7 E
RIS ERE - HAEE -

income tax expense of HK$85,719,000 arising from
the disposal of a joint venture (note 19) was estimated
according to the notice of the State Administration of
Taxation of the PRC [2017] No. 37. Such estimation is
subject to the final tax outcome as determined by the

relevant tax authority in the PRC.
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

2018 2017
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BR BT 1S 4 Al Al Profit before income tax 429,833 102,549
RAER %16.5% Tax on profit before income tax,
(Z2—+t%F:165%) calculated at the statutory rate of
SECBRATERADEFIE  16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 70,922 16,921
REAM AR L E 2 Effect of different tax rates of
HMEBRARTRME 22 subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions 20,842 (2,492)
fEfhE **ﬁ%%ﬁz Tax effect of share of results of
-7 joint ventures (11,395) (20,297)
I %RF#EJ iZTfﬁ%%; Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 4,813 8,922
MR A 2 BT s & Tax effect of non-taxable income (15,398) (5,848)
BABEAERTIEREIE  Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (56) (332)
KRERHIBEBEBZREFE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 5,781 9,422
AEREREZEIMIEFE  Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised (354) (2,319
A (R, (Over)/Under provision in prior years
BET R 77 121
Fr8 B = Income tax expense 75,078 4,098
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- BIRET

ARBHE ANBESRERNLHE
BRI T BIRTE

10. DIVIDENDS

At the board meeting held on 24 September 2018, the
directors resolved to recommend a final dividend of HKO0.5
cent per ordinary share. The proposed dividend have not
been recognised as a dividend payable as at 30 June 2018,
but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits
for the year ending 30 June 2019.

The directors did not recommend any payment of dividends
in respect of the year ended 30 June 2017.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the
following data:

2018 2017
F#ET FAET
HK$000 HK$ 000
FRUAGTEGRERZF] 2 Profit attributable to the owners of
ZAYNGIE? ¥ SN eyl the Company for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 354,759 98,306

O
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

& H
Number of shares
2018 2017
AU ESRERRBF 2 Weighted average number of
AR N 5 ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 6,831,182,580 6,831,182,580
ELE=REV P Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
BEakeow® shares in respect of
— AR RE (PIEEG)) — Share option (note (i)) = -
RUAGTESREER T 2 Weighted average number of
TmAR I 192K ordinary shares for the purpose of
diluted earnings per share 6,831,182,580 6,831,182,580
Htaz - Note:
(i) REBEZE=_ZFT—-—NF~A (i) The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to

=+RLEFE - AAAE
BABEERERNAETT
ERARRIEAR AEMNE
#354,759,000% T (— &
—+ % : 98,306,000/ 7T )
RERILBIRMEFHHK
6,831,182,5800% (= Z —
4 :6,831,182,5800% ) 5t & -

REEZZTZ-—NFR=F
—+FERNA=THILEE
HREBREARBEYE.
MR E SRS A TR
R EREREITE

the owners of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2018 is based on the profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$354,759,000 (2017: HK$98,306,000)
and on the weighted average number of 6,831,182,580
(2017: 6,831,182,580) ordinary shares during the year.

For the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, the
computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume
the exercise of share options as they were anti-dilutive.
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+Z - EERAIEAZ (8 12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
HEEMWE — MiEE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
+=) EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 13)
2018 2017
F#ET FET
HKS$'000 HK$'000

TE %4 ZELREYWHZIE  Wages, salaries, allowances and

benefits in kind 81,815 93,779

RE R INET B R Contributions on defined contribution
retirement plans 6,902 9,021
VAR A7) 72 L1t 2 SR B Share-based compensation = 2,140
88,717 104,940

+= - EEFMRINES 13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND

AT ZEE EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS
(a) ES=Me (a) Directors’ emoluments
BESE R A KA Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to S.383
(FERNBZ-+t=ZE)% of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
—BN+=ZKEAT (3 and the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
BREEAM=ER) R Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) is as
(FARE-_T-GE )FE follows:
ZEEFMOT
2018 2017
Fi#&T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B0 Directors’ fees 250 225
o R NEYHIZE  Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 9,576 10,806
TE4T Bonus 1,906 1,870
RIRAEFIFT S Contributions to retirement
benefit schemes 406 532
VARG D A& 2458 Share-based payment - 2,140
i < 4858 Total emoluments 12,138 15,573
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+= - EEFMRINES 13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
FATZEE @) EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) ESME (&) (@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
FHAENHENSES 2 The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
BT : directors during the year were as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2018
BE_F-\EXA=HAHLEE
e BHR RIKGEF DT
EzHg B & el AESS ERHF @t
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors'  and benefits benefit  Share-based
fees in kind Bonus schemes payment Total

Téx Tz Tz Féx Tz Tz
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000

(HzEG) (P& ()

(note (i) (note (ii))
HiTEE: Executive directors:
REE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 2,400 300 128 - 2,828
L\ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 2,280 290 103 - 2,673
BEH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,080 180 49 - 1,309
BfE Chan Wi Lap, Victor = 2,400 400 108 = 2,908
BRE Wong Edward Gwon-hing - 1,416 236 18 - 1,670
FarES: Non-executive director:
FEEER (i) Yam Tat Wing (note (i) 50 - 100 - - 150
BUERTES: Independent non-executive

directors:

REX Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - 100 - - 150
R Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - 100 - - 150
HRE Sze lrons 50 - 100 - - 150
KiiE Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - 100 - - 150
et Total 250 9,576 1,906 406 - 12,138
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+= - EEFMRINES 13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
FALTZEE @) EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) EEME (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2017
BEZS—tE/ A=THLER
5e 2R RINET IR &
Yok ENfla bz SHER  RRZER it
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors'  and benefits benefit  Share-based
fees in kind Bonus schemes payment Total

TET T TET TET TR TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

(GE) (PizEGi))

(note (i)) (note (i)
BiTES: Executive directors:
REE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,000 600 261 - 3,861
Lj$=3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 2,280 500 103 - 2,883
BREM Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,056 190 4 535 1828
Bz Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 2,088 330 9% 535 3,047
BER Wong Edward Gwon-hing 1,380 250 18 535 2,183
EEER (3E(i)) Yam Tat Wing (note (i) - 1,002 - 9 535 1,546
FUTES: Non-executive director:
R 58 (HiaE (i) Yam Tat Wing (note (i) 25 = = = = 25
BukHiES: Independent non-executive

directors:

REX Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - - 50
RimE Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - - 50
HBRE Sz rons 50 = - - - 50
RiEE Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - - 50
st Total 225 10,806 1870 532 2,140 15,573
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(i) ZEFEHEREARD A
BREAERTESZ
EREGFEE-ZF
BREZEBEREGS
B S 3R 3% I 7 3.22FT #
Z AR BER 2 5K
ZEBETBURFTE B &
HERE E—SFHS
R AT BRI T
=+Ne

(i) EEER T —tF—
A—BHARARITE
ERERFERTES-

FAREESHELRE
PR3 B 2 Bl %
B-FARBEERRE
B -

FR - AREYERAES
X AHEM B E R IIASK
RINARE B 2 2EEhsk
Bl B RN

(b) IUBSHFAL

REBEEZE_ZT-—\FR_F
—tEXNA=ZTHLF
B AEERUREHA
TEHERRAES §
E2ME BN EXXE

23

13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i) The bonus is determined by the individual
performance of the directors.

(i) These amounts represent the estimated value of
share options granted to the directors under the
Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options was measured according to
the accounting policies for share-based payments
as set out in note 3.22 to the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the
options granted were set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(iii) Yam Tat Wing was re-designated from Executive
Director to Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 1 January 2017.

There was no other arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year. No directors waived any
emoluments during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 were
all directors of the Company and details of their
emoluments are disclosed above.
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+0 - ¥R - BB RERE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
EFREE R %E-
HELH nEXE REEE  BRERBE RBRRE aEIR et
Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings and equipment
Leasehold leasehold Mining Plantand ~ and motor  Construction
land  improvements structures  machinery vehicles  in progress Total
AT AT AT AT AT T FET
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RZF-7"§LA-H Asat 1 July 2016
A Cost 5,052 93379 45,769 58477 60,702 10,730 274,109
ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment 2,17 (62,978) (3392 (52,911) (55,497) 2183 (179,678)
REFE Net carrying amount 2,335 30,401 42377 5,566 5.205 8,547 94,431
BEZT-tE Year ended 30 June 2017
NAZTALEE
ENREFE Opening net canying amount 2335 30401 42371 5,566 5,05 8,547 94,431
E Additions - 1,720 - 4 1,498 3,221 6,449
HE /i DisposalsMitten off - (3,192) - (1471) (225) - (4,888)
il Depreciation (1) (3,051) (31) (318) 2,197) - (5,669)
HEEE Impairment loss = (464) (18,933) (228) (39) (3,710) (23374)
SR Surplus on revaluation 33,885 2,500 - - - - 36,385
BRRENZ Transfer to investment property
(M%) (note 16) (34,600) (2,500) - - - - (37,100)
EHAR Exchange realignment - (422) (577) 1) (50) (116) (1,236)
EXRETE Closing net carrying amount 1,549 24,99 22,836 3,482 419 7,948 64,999
RZF-tERAZTH  At30June 2017
R Cost 3,538 86,524 45,145 45,552 54,690 13,810 249,259
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (1,989) (61,532) (22,309) (42,070) (50,498) (5,862) (184,260)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,549 24,992 22,836 3,482 4192 7,948 64,999
BEZZ-\f Year ended 30 June 2018
~AZTALEE
ENREEE Opening net carrying amount 1,549 24,992 22,836 3482 4192 7,948 64,999
HE Additions - 32 - 16 1,859 1,640 3,547
HE /s Disposalsriten off = (680) - = (366) = (1,046)
il Depreciation (82) (2.736) - (247) (1,783) - (4,808)
HEER Impairment loss - (289) (6,517) (47) ) (1,087) (7.941)
BN/ (81) Transfer in/fout) - - 2558 = = (2,558) =
ERa% Exchange realignment - 639 670 16 136 234 1,695
EXRETE Closing net carrying amount 1,467 21,958 19,547 3,220 4,077 6,177 56,446
RZF-NEXAZ+H  At30June 2018
R Cost 3,538 85,876 47,703 45,568 56,183 12,892 251,760
LHTERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment ,0n) (63,918) (28,156) (42,348) (52,106) (6,715) (195,314)
REFR Net carrying amount 1,467 21,958 19,547 3220 4,017 6,177 56,446

ul
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(o))

M~ %K - BB KRR
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Hiat -

(a)

R=_F—N\FEXA=1+AH"
22,113,000 7L (= —+
£ 143,304,000/ 7T) 2 &
THE- BE K& HEK
BEBEP—EARSEE
BA([RBERSEEEN
— BB HARRRSE
BN —ETRERN S E
#7,051,000% 7T (=T —+
£:23,374,00087C) Z & T
& = A T8 E IR BT RR T
B RE °

FHER e EE BN — 2 A
o] & BE 49 418,444,000/ 70

—ZT—+%:26,861,000/5
JC)  TIEROFH 2B &R
ERA-FEAMBERERE
TERAIR B A AR T &K
EEX - ARETHREELR
AT m & 58 2 R A &
(EESUNNE

—E-)\f
IFHAZERE FHA
3.00%
Fiig AhIR = 15.43%
—ZE—+t&
SFEHAZERE FTHA
3.00%
g AhIR = 15.35%

EREERFRASELE
T~ 2B KBRS
HE 2 BMEE RS LR
CETES SRS 3 Tvss
2 68 E3E A FEE

= °

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 30 June 2018, certain property, plant and equipment
of HK$22,113,000 (2017: HK$43,304,000), which were
related to one of the cash-generating units of the mining
operation (“Mining CGU "), were assessed for impairment
under this Mining CGU | and certain of these assets
amounting to HK$7,051,000 (2017: HK$23,374,000) were
impaired as a result of the delay of the predetermined
mining plan.

The recoverable amount of this Mining CGU | amounting
to approximately HK$18,444,000 (2017: HK$26,861,000)
has been determined based on the fair value less costs of
disposal using discounted cash flow projection which was
based on the cash flow projection for a period of 9 years.
Key estimates and assumptions used for determining the
recoverable amount of the CGU are as follows:

2018

Growth rate during the 9-year period  Average of 3.00%

Post-tax discount rate 15.43%

2017

Growth rate during the 8-year period  Average of 3.00%

Post-tax discount rate 15.35%

Estimates and assumptions are determined by management
based on the past performance of the Mining CGU | and
management’s expectation for the market development.
The fair value of the Mining CGU | is a level 3 fair value
measurement.



Annual Report 2018 “F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE-_ZT—/\FRA=THILFE

+m - ¥ - BB RRE

(&

i

Hiet - (&)

(b)

R=ZF—N\FXA=+H"
REBETHME BE KK
FEHEREEKS —EReE
BN ([FRER S EE BN
Z1)BE M RO A
BRSEEBEN _#ITRE
& i © 49890,0008 T (=&
—t & E) DR EEEE &
EMB A S B Y BRE R
B RAE (ME+t) -

R=ZZFE—-—NFEXNA=ZT
H ASBAEEFELD
11,252,000 7w (=T — &
£ :12,131,000 7T) 2 &
FTHRE L REFEHIE
B ERAEEER Y —K
RITEERE 2 BR (FTaE
i AP

RZZE—NFXA=1+H"
B RESEBENRE
HERHB 2 & ZER%E120,000
B (ZZ — £ 4 : 581,000
I °

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

As at 30 June 2018, certain property, plant and equipment
of the Group, which are related to another cash-generating
unit of the mining operation (the “Mining CGU II")
are combined with the mining right for impairment
assessment at that Mining CGU |l level. Impairment loss
of approximately HK$890,000 (2017: Nil) was allocated
to write down the carrying value of the Group's property,
plant and equipment (note 17).

At 30 June 2018, the Group's certain leasehold land
and buildings with aggregate net carrying amounts of
approximately HK$11,252,000 (2017: HK$12,131,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group (note 28).

At 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of motor vehicles
includes an amount of HK$120,000 (2017: HK$581,000) in
respect of assets held under finance leases.

~l
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15.

LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights represented prepaid
operating lease payments and the movements in their net
carrying amounts are analysed as follows:

2018 2017

F#ET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FYRE 58 Opening net carrying amount 32,908 34,687
FAHEHEEA Amortisation charge for the year (1,383) (1,349)
PE % A& Exchange realignment 873 (430)
FRIREFRE Closing net carrying amount 32,398 32,908

R=ZF—N\FENA=+H &
BRE 42 %81,269,0007%8 7T (=
T — £ :1,305,000/8 ) 2 &
Tt AR R fERAK
EEER —RIBTEEREZ
BR(HE=1+\) -

M3 -L7E S

AEBRKLHERA URRA
T EERNEEZ A EER
RERRERBIERREY R
REZFEWE SRANFE
BAGE  WIFREMERER
N -E

16.

At 30 June 2018, the Group’s certain land use rights with
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$1,269,000 (2017:
HK$1,305,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 28).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes
or property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment properties are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.
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+75 HEWE @) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
RERE BRI K 25 2 BRA £ Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the
AT consolidated statement of financial position can be

summarised as follows:

2018 2017
F#ET FEr
HK$000 HK$'000
FARE SR Carrying amount at beginning
of the year 37,800 472,930
NE Additions 12,232 4,106
BERMZFE () Interests capitalised
(note 7) 11,578 794
N ERARME N FE Net gain from fair value adjustments 67,017 700
WiE— B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary
(B &R +75) (note 46) 1,179,773 -
HE—HWHEAF Disposal of a subsidiary
(B EEm ++) (note 47) - (477,830)
B BE KRR HERE Transfer from property, plant and
(MgEE+m) equipment (note 14) = 37,100
FEREEEH Carrying amount at end of the year 1,308,400 37,800

R 51 ERELE 2 ML EA
FEHEEE TEAEBAR
B 115530 -

R_Z—N\FXA=1+HB B%
RIEEMFEREBBERTME
RA (ZE—tF:ZFHE
FHEERAR) RAEELEE
ZE—tF HEREECE)#TT
&1E 15 i 2 &8 £38,400,000
ot (ZZ —+ 4 : 37,800,000
PETT) c B L BEZE BRI E 5k
BRWEZKR - HES AR
J AR TSR B RS R
BZBBENLBEMR -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

Completed investment property was valued at 30 June 2018
by Roma Appraisals Limited (2017: Roma Appraisals Limited)
at HK$38,400,000 (2017: HK$37,800,000) by adopting
the direct comparison approach (2017: direct comparison
approach). The direct comparison approach considers the
sales, listing or offerings of similar or substitute properties
and related market data establishes a value estimate by
processes involving comparison.

Xe)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE_Z-\FRA=THILFE

(@)

+5 - REVE »)

RZZE—NFAA=1+H EE
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ENRETREREAAN (B2
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment property under development was valued
at 30 June 2018 by Roma Appraisals Limited at
HK$1,270,000,000 by adopting the residual method.
The residual method is determined by deducting the
estimated total cost of the development including costs of
construction, professional fee, finance cost, associated costs
and an allowance for developer’s risk and profit from the
gross development value.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties is a level
3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

RAFELEHRERAT opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:
2018 2017
FETT TBT
HK$'000 HK$000
FAHER Opening balance
(F3BEEERTE) (level 3 recurring fair value) 37,800 472,930
INE Additions 12,232 4,106
B2 F B (ML) Interests capitalised (note 7) 11,578 794
NEERAEMENEFE Net gain from fair value adjustments 67,017 700
U BE — R BT /B A &) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 46)
(B &R +75) 1,179,773 -
& —fEEB AR Disposal of a subsidiary (note 47)
(P EFEm++) - (477,830)
B  BE MR AR Transfer from property,
(MEE+mM) plant and equipment (note 14) = 37,100
FREER Closing balance
(FBEEEHEATE) (level 3 recurring fair value) 1,308,400 37,800
PERFIIFEEFT ABZEZ  Change in unrealised gains or losses
FRAREBUZELEIBESE)  for the year included in profit or loss
for assets held at the end of the year 67,017 700
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value measurement is based on the above

investment properties’ highest and best use, which does not

differ from their actual use.

The following table gives information about how the fair

NFEEZER values of the investment properties are determined.
Eil fhfEH EXBEBRENE EXEEBRONECER  EAREBEB\BANTEZER
Relationship of significant
Significant Range of significant unobservable inputs to fair
Description Vialuation technique unobservable inputs unobservable inputs value
2018 2017 2018 2017
BERRENE ERIEE BRI NXES MNFE K REE +-2% H-4%  DERERAERRNE EERR:
- 14% -1%  ATESE
Completed investment property  Direct Direct Quality of properties such s location, The higher the quality of properties with
comparison comparison size and level of the properties reference to comparables, the higher
approach approach the fair value.
ERMRAMF HeEEE R RRERNLSER L SEREREE BEAR BB TARERRR ATHEAR:
iR ERAMEARE 26,0007~
RN DEEE WESES  3600087T
Investment property Residual NA Value per saleable area using direct HKS26,000 - NA The higher the price per square foot, the
under development method comparable and taking into account  HK$36,000 per higher the fair value.
of the location and other individual square foot
factors, such as size of property, evel
of property, Site view efc.
iR 38% MER  YRERR ATERE-
Discount rate NA  The higher the discount rate, the lower
the fair value.
CHEADE 8EHR TR hERIRAAR ATERE-
46418 T
Estimated costs to completion HK$4,641 per NA  The higher the estimated costs to
square foot completion, the lower the fair value.

RZE—N\FRNA=1+H A&
B [ 4 %81,308,400,0005 7T
(== —+%:37,800,0007 7T )
ZIREMECHIEA (EALRE
EERZETRATEEZER
(HIsE=+ ) o

As at 30 June 2018, the Group's investment properties
with a carrying amount of HK$1,308,400,000 (2017:
HK$37,800,000) was pledged to secure certain bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 28).
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++t - HiE#E 17. MINING RIGHT

2018 2017

Fi&T FHETT

HK$°000 HK$ 000

F YRR E S Opening net carrying amount 646,739 656,334
FREHE A Amortisation charge for the year - (656)
FRRERE Provision of impairment for the year (41,972) =
bE 5 AR Exchange realignment 18,982 (8,939)
FRIRMEFRE Closing net carrying amount 623,749 646,739
ARE AR Gross carrying amount 992,701 964,396
Rt Accumulated amortisation (4,494) (4,366)
REDREREE Accumulated provision for impairment (364,458) (313,291)
AREDFER Net carrying amount 623,749 646,739

RIEHEPTBIRER S ELE B —
Z AT Bl & BEARE A AR &
RAZFAERN (F3ERFE
AEIEBEE-RBRRSELEN
—ZEEAFERA RAREE
BE1& - RATfh EREE R R
B EA T KSR 2 B S ER T
MABFEBRARET

R-ZZE-NFRA=1TH KE
ReEABN 2 ATERBE
RAERIREER S RET
BEE tERBREELSE
= A PERER 2 ZEHREBER
LA R EMZ RIEGF R
RI%

The recoverable amount of the Mining CGU Il to which
the mining right belongs was determined based on the
measurement of fair value less costs of disposal, a level 3
fair value measurement. The valuation of the Mining CGU Il
was carried out by BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent
valuer who held recognised and relevant professional
qualifications and had recent experience in the location and
category of the mining right being valued.

The fair value less costs of disposal of the Mining CGU I
as at 30 June 2018 was measured using recent sale and
purchase transactions under the market-based approach.
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the Mining CGU Il were based on the independent
professional valuer’s best estimate.
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++t - RIEE &) 17. MINING RIGHT (continued)

ZIEZ ENELBERBAEN
T

AR EEERZ T EEHE

The range of uncertainty of estimated gold resources

RFEBERRERR

Adjusted consideration to resources multiple

= AFETE - ERBERAK
BEHAm ATERS

B EEMHEMNEEER T
TEERSITE R R A M PAZGE S
(ERFRI

 E_T-N\FA=THIEF
B 2BBBAE EFRAEE
BESELBN A lkO4%E
&5 A524,688,000/8 75 * i1 2
Bl B RERS  RIEIR S EA
B = 2 R{BEEE42,862,0007
TT © R {8 B 18 1 YE OB BRI A LA
EMZE - BERZEEASES
751141,972,0007% 7T 52.890,000/%8
o REBEFARNEEEES
H T2 HREFTS - BEBEEE

BE_T—LFRA=THLHF
B-RERSELEM _WER
B

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were
as follows:

30%%£100%
30% to 100%

BR3781EBTLE
Br71.2587T
HK$37.81

per gram to
HK$71.25 per gram

The higher the range of uncertainty of the estimated gold
resources is, the lower the fair value is. The higher the
adjusted consideration of resources multiple is, the higher
the fair value is.

The independent professional valuer exercised their
professional judgement to estimate the uncertainty of
resources to improve the valuation technique.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, with reference to
the assessment, the directors were of the view that the
recoverable amount of the Mining CGU Il was estimated
to be HK$524,688,000 and therefore, an impairment loss
of HK$42,862,000 in respect of the Mining CGU Il of the
mining business was identified. The impairment loss was
allocated to write down the carrying amount of mining right
and property, plant and equipment by HK$41,972,000 and
HK$890,000 respectively. The impairment loss was included
under mining operation of the Group’s operating segment.
The impairment loss was primarily due to the change in
market gold price.

For the year ended 30 June 2017, there was no impairment
of Mining CGU II.
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2]

T\ REfE QR ZH#E R

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2018 2017

F#ET FET

HKS$'000 HK$ 000

IE ETRRAD - A AR Unlisted shares, at cost = =
B EESE Share of net assets 6,034 6,034
VERIEEE Provision for impairment (6,034) (6,034)
2018 2017

F#ET FETT

HK$°000 HK$'000

JE U B8 A B 5k IE Due from associates 1,259 1,259
Vo RIERE L] Provision for impairment (1,259) (1,259)

KHE-T—\FR-F—%F
AASTRILEE  AREKE
B AR R E AR B
@JO

FEUS SR IE A IR - 5 B R AR
BRBEK -

There was no movement in impairment losses in respect of
amounts due from associates during the years ended 30
June 2018 and 2017.

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.
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T\ REfE AR ZHEE 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
(#&)
e EERERE 2 ASEEE The summarised financial information of the Group's
B Nl 2 S E R AT principal associate extracted from its management accounts

are as follows:

2018 2017
F#ET FBEIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
n7A<B=+H As at 30 June

EREBEE Non-current assets 8 235
mENEE Current assets 4,941 4,062
EREEE Non-current liabilities = -
MENE R Current liabilities (7,711) (616)

BENA=THLEE For the year ended 30 June
Wz Revenue 273 2,370
FREE Loss for the year (6,085) (1,702)
Hibh 2wk Other comprehensive income 95 (68)
2HE TR ARRE Total comprehensive income (5,990) (1,770)
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(o))

+/)\ - REFE AT Z R 18.

(#&)

T \FXA=tH IE
BERRZ BT

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associate as at 30 June 2018 are
as follows:

AL/ FEEELERAR

% ERRRMERRE AR BHEADU IEEH
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
Particulars of paid-up registration and attributable
Name registered capital operations to the Group Principal activities
FEENMESHERAR  BRRBAAKRH,093247 PR AR 36 REEHRERE
General Jewellery (Shanghai)  Paid up capital of RMB9,093,244 Mainland China Jewellery manufacturing

Company Limited*

* FEBBBU GRS E
BRAR AR EES
HAppk B R B

EERS LA RRBERR
IZXEFARGBERRESA
SRR R EEIEHE RRE
FEZBRHBD EFRS IR
HEMBERRZHTEEHR
IEER IR -

il

i

L}

BE—_ZT-NFE~A=+HL
FEERZZE—NFESA=T
HEGZABEREBEED A
2,172,000 7T (=& — £ 5F:
608,000/ 7T ) &4,840,000%
T (ZZF —+%F:2,668,000/%
TL) °

and wholesaling

* Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.

The above associate of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the share of associates’
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
share of net asset of the associate by the Group. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The share of unrecognised loss during the year ended
30 June 2018 and as at 30 June 2018 amounted to
HK$2,172,000 (2017: HK$608,000) and HK$4,840,000
(2017: HK$2,668,000) respectively.
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Th MegtRz#EHE 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2018 2017

Fi&T FEIT

HK$°000 HK$'000

[BIEEEFE Share of net assets 243 141,198
RIEH —EEELELE Deemed capital contribution to

a joint venture® - 37,490

LT REERECER Loans to a joint venture 14,500 676,140

14,743 854,828

LT HEELEZERAER The loans to a joint venture are unsecured, interest-free

H 2EREETEENM -ES and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of

RiBZEERBANRE A BR the directors, these loans are not repayable within twelve

AT ZEAAERE- months from the reporting date.

u RZZE—tFA=+H" g As at 30 June 2017, the balance represented the deemed
AR DEEE —RHEE capital contribution to a wholly-owned subsidiary of a
EhEZ2EWBARZH joint venture, representing the fair value of the financial
& HERARAFZA A guarantee contracts provided by the Company to a bank
HEITZRITEERE (M for the banking facility entered by that company (note 32).
=+ =) MRT TR ISR R
BHZATFE

2018 2017

Fi&T FEIT

HKS$000 HK$'000

FEU G & > FEFRIE Due from joint ventures 183 166
B Provision for impairment = (150)
183 16
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0]

Th REEEFRZHER 19.

Z

(%) (continued)

FEW— & SRR 2 BIER

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The movement in the provision for impairment of amount

EEBMT due from a joint venture is as follows:
2018 2017
F#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHHEER Balance at beginning of the year 150 150

—fEl&a & EREE M Written-off of impairment loss due to

i $Hf S8 R (B S 18 de-registration of a joint venture (150) =
FRER Balance at end of the year - 150

FENGR IR R EEA - % 8 KB

S e
SRR -

s

B

on demand.

e
%

RZE—NERA=ZTHEE=-ZF

—tFRNA=ZTH FTEGZED and 30 June 2017 are as follows:

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable

Particulars of the principal joint ventures as at 30 June 2018

EZHBUHT:
t# BRITRARE SR/ B S AERERRARERT ML TERH
Place of Percentage of
Particulars of incorporation/ ownership interest
Name issued share capital registration attributable to the Group Principal activities
2018 2017
Wealth Plus Developments SO0ESRABIXT, — EERRES - 500 RERR
Limitect* i3l
50,000 ordinary shares of Brish Virgin Islands Investment holding
US$1 each
Reta Investment Holding Limited ~ 10000RSRAEIXT,  ERERKES 50 - REBR
10,000 ordinary shares of British Virgin Islands Investment holding
US$1 each
ERARARAT 1000072 B8R i - 0 EEER
Multi-Minerals Limited Ordinary shares of Hong Kong Inactive
HK$10,000
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Th -REEEFEZHER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(%) (continued)
* RZZE-NF—-—A=+= g On 22 January 2018, the Group entered into a sale

B A&EEFZ—HEEW
Z([HEHE])  AEE
Wealth Plus Developments
Limited ([Wealth Plus|)
50% M At RiERS —
FZEEBE (—HREBR
ZEEEFMEAZZERA
A ZRERE R AT
EMEeI A E THER
2 R {E A1,305,796,000
BB HEREE
EZRA%BZ B REF
%8 /1,303,926,0007%8 7T °
i &= Wealth Plusz Yz A
363,206,000/% 7T * i 2 = )X
HEEEHEER BB
5 i 7 5285,719,0007%8 7L A
HE=_ZT—N\FA=+H
LEFERBERR-ZER
SERARRB—HIEETEKN
HERS E—FTFHBEHR
ARARIBHA-_ZT—NF=
RZHZ@BHe

AKEERAEZE®D®EReta
Investment Holding Limited
([Reta Investment | » A % B 52
ZEHSHEMK L RREEEE
ZEBUER) (ZE—t &
Wealth Plus (A& B FE M A 32 K
BECZEVER)REREERS
RAaE (REBFMA R EE
ZENERE) )HBS0% (ZF
—tEF:50% ) Em-AHLHE
EAAEERHEEZESGER
P2 BEFEMER 2BEF - M
Reta Investment ( Z&—+4:
Wealth Plus& BIEE R AR A
AEEHBHEELRHEEY
EFREEEREBEZEE
RIEB B R EERE1155
ZEGELTHEREREEDRE
W EF AR REARGRS MR
ABR e

and purchase agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”)
to dispose of 50% equity interest in Wealth Plus
Developments Limited (“Wealth Plus”) and the
shareholders’ loan to another joint venture partner,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, at a total consideration of
HK$1,305,796,000 after certain adjustment as stipulated in
the Disposal Agreement. The net proceeds after deducting
costs directly incurred from this disposal amounting to
HK$1,303,926,000. The gain on disposal of Wealth Plus
amounting to HK$363,206,000 and the corresponding
PRC enterprise income tax expense associated with this
disposal amounted to HK$85,719,000 were recognised
in profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2018.
This transaction constituted a very substantial disposal
transaction of the Company and further details were
disclosed in the circular dated 2 March 2018.

The Group has 50% (2017: 50%) interests in joint ventures,
Reta Investment Holding Limited (“Reta Investment”),
a separate structured vehicle incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and operating in Hong Kong, (2017: Wealth
Plus, a separate structured vehicle incorporated and
operating in Hong Kong, and Multi-Minerals Limited, a
separate structured vehicle incorporated and operating in
Hong Kong). The contractual arrangement provides the
Group with only the rights to the net assets of these joint
arrangements, with the rights to the assets and obligation
for the liabilities of the joint arrangement resting primarily
with Reta Investment (2017: Wealth Plus and Multi-Minerals
Limited). Under HKFRS 11, these joint arrangements are
classified as joint ventures and have been accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method.

O
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o

ik

Th REEExzE
()

AEB2ZEKE E D %Reta
Investment &2 E fff & 2 & ([Reta
Investmentss [# | ) 2 81 75 & KL BE
ZUARBEGFAREBIRE M B R

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

The summarised financial information of Reta Investment
and its subsidiaries (“Reta Investment Group”), a material
joint venture of the Group, and reconciliation to the carrying
amount included in the Group’s consolidated financial

RZ2EESB RN statements are as follows:
2018 2017
F#T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$000
RANB=1+H As at 30 June
EMBEE Non-current assets 26,858 =
mENEE Current assets 69,587 =
IEREEE Non-current liabilities (2,840) =
mBEE Current liabilities (67,638) =
BEFE Net assets 25,967 =
W IEPE AR R A Less: Non-controlling interest (25,481) =
BEPREAFAA Net assets attributable to equity
15 & EFE holders of the joint venture 486 =
STA LGB ZIEE ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
BehIReER Cash and cash equivalents 3,175 =
nEBEMBE(TEEZS K Current financial liabilities (excluding
H M e IR ) trade and other payables) (40,603) =
ERBEE (TEEEMD Non-current liabilities (excluding other
JE 1~ 7R I8 e Hs s ) payables and provision) (2,840) =
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(%) (continued)
2018 2017
F#ET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
BESA=THLEE For the year ended 30 June
e Revenue 67,993 =
F (A5 A Profit for the year 408 -
Hh 2 e Other comprehensive income = =
ZHK AR Total comprehensive income 408 =
A LMRIE 2 IER ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
e LB Depreciation and amortisation (2,902) =
FEHA Interest income 95 -
FEFAX Interest expense (338) =
Frisfi#E % Income tax credit 1,577 -
HAEBEREELEZ Reconciled to the Group's
HEEH R interests in the joint venture
BETEERFEAA Net assets attributable to equity
R EEFE holders of the joint venture 486 =
REEz BER#ER Group's effective interest 50% =
REEEGEEERFE Group's share of net assets of
BESE the joint venture 243 -
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ik

Th REEExzE
()

RNEBZEKRE E D EWealth
Plus &2 & B A Al ([Wealth
PlussE® | ) 2 A 15 E R BEZE DA &
B AREBSREPBMRAERZ

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

The summarised financial information of Wealth Plus and its
wholly-owned subsidiary (“Wealth Plus Group”), a material
joint venture of the Group, and reconciliation to the carrying
amount included in the Group's consolidated statement of

RESBZHRNAT : financial position is as follow:
2018 2017
F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R7NBA=+H As at 30 June
EMBEE Non-current assets = 2,689,860
MENEE Current assets = 80,050
IEREEE Non-current liabilities = (1,510,666)
mBNEE Current liabilities = (901,878)
FTALMFRIEZIEE Included in the above amounts are:
RERRESEH Cash and cash equivalents — 35,601
nEBEMBE(TEEZS K Current financial liabilities (excluding
H A pEAS FIE) trade and other payables) = (825,546)
IERBEE (TEEEMD Non-current liabilities (excluding other
T FRIB K B ) payables and provision) = (1,510,666)
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(#&) (continued)
2018 2017
F#ET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
BESA=THLEE For the year ended 30 June
Weas Revenue 141,956 143,509
F N Al Profit for the year 137,713 246,022
H b 2wl Other comprehensive income 134,577 (19,930)
ZHK AR Total comprehensive income 272,290 226,092
A LMRIE 2 IER ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
e Depreciation (580) (677)
FEHA Interest income 155 159
FEFAX Interest expense (74,286) (70,480)
FriSfif 2 Income tax expense (62,941) (100,079)
HAEBEREELEZ Reconciled to the Group's
HEEH R interests in the joint venture
BETEERFEAA Net assets attributable to equity
R EEFE holders of the joint venture - 357,366
REEz BER#ER Group's effective interest - 50%
REERGEEREEEFE Group's share of net assets of
the joint venture - 178,683
HER: Represented by:
ElEeEtEEEFE Share of net assets of the joint venture - 141,193
RIEHEERELE Deemed capital contribution to the
joint venture - 37,490
BREE Carrying amount = 178,683
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Th REEEFRZER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(%) (continued)
REEFERGEREZHEE Financial information of the joint venture that is immaterial
k- to the Group:
2018 2017
F#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEAREETEZIREEE  Carrying amount of immaterial

joint venture - 5
F (A5 A Profit for the year - -
H 2wl Other comprehensive income = =
ZHENEEEE Total comprehensive income — =

"+ AHHEZERIEE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS
2018 2017
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ETHRARE R ATE: Listed equity investments, at fair value:
BB Hong Kong 8,868 8,784
EiE (FIsE@) & b)) Elsewhere (note (a) and (b)) 1,286 2,270
10,154 11,054
FEEMRAIRE - KA Unlisted equity investments,
(F3E©)) at cost (note () 19,092 19,092
VERIEEEL ] Provision for impairment (14,861) (14,861)
4,231 4,231
st Total 14,385 15,285
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“t+AHEZEMEE

(&)

Bt

(a)

RZE—TFA=H" K&
AAl—EHEEEZERE R
AMERZERAER AR ([E
) E2Famous Key Holdings
Limited ([Famous Key ] -
—AREBREXES T
MKz EBRRAA - BA
AEITTESREZEL
(IMRBEL)E2EHE)E]
B & W MAmFamous
Keyl fig & #£2,239,873
&k Macarthur Minerals
Limited ([MMS |) i 5
[ B - £ E) 78 EEMinmetals
Mining Corporation Limited
(IMinmetals | - —ER &
MK 2 BRAR)ET
VYE—MEEWE AR
Minmetals{Z B3,144,654%
MMSE& 3 = MinmetalsZ =
7 Ml 5E & B EARD R FEH
TEE - EK LR 2 1§
HRGHEE EER=_F
—— F®=A=+HBBM
Famous Key X MinmetalsZ£1T
A RR = 4% - AT {E3.05/0
70 (A5 124354770 ) TEAK
Uz B#5,384,52 7R MMSEE (7
MMSE—FERINE X% R
ZEIEZ G ETmZBM A
A HEZEBARNBRMNA
MR EAEEEEHTER
EZHEAME -

RBE-_Z—N\FEK_F
—+t&FANA=THLEFE:
RN ETRR AR A TE
ABTH® - ZEERE BH
ERIE RN TR AR A BIR
B YRFRIESERRE
/&518984,000/% L (= F —+
F : 620,000/ 7)) ©

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 3 June 2010, Trade Bloom Holdings Limited (“Trade
Bloom”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Famous Key Holdings Limited (“Famous Key”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and wholly-owned by Dr. Chan Sing Chuk
("Dr. Chan"), an executive director of the Company, to
acquire an aggregate of 2,239,873 shares of Macarthur
Minerals Limited (“MMS") from Famous Key. On the same
date, Trade Bloom also entered into another sale and
purchase agreement with Minmetals Mining Corporation
Limited (“Minmetals”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, to acquire 3,144,654 shares
of MMS from Minmetals. Mr. Fang Gang, a director of
Minmetals, was previously a non-executive director of the
Company. Having satisfied the terms and conditions of the
aforesaid agreements, the acquisitions of the 5,384,527
shares of MMS were completed on 30 March 2011 at
the market price of Canadian dollars 3.05 (equivalent to
HK$24.354) by the issue of convertible notes to Famous
Key and Minmetals. MMS is an Australian company
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada and its
principal activity is exploration and development of an area
with significant prospective iron-ore located in Western
Australia.

There was a significant decline in the market values of
listed equity investments in overseas during the year ended
30 June 2018 and 2017. The directors consider that such
a decline indicates that the listed equity investments have
been impaired and an impairment loss of HK$984,000
(2017: HK$620,000) has been recognised in profit or loss
for the year.

ul
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(@)

Zt - AHHEZEMEE
()

Hret: (&

© IE_E T AR AR B HR A AN R 2
WEREINER REERE
B 1% & I £ R E BB T 45 3
B BAFEZEEMGTE
EREHT2BEGHEEE
R RBE_T—+FNA
=tRHIEFE BEMHFR
REERE  AEBERRAR
FTEZIFELETRAZESSE
SRE B 187,753,00058 IT

Zt+— - REIBYWIER

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(© The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less
provision for impairment as they do not have quoted
market prices in an active market and the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant and the
probability of the various estimates is significant. During
the year ended 30 June 2017, an impairment loss of
HK$7,753,000 was made on the Group's unlisted equity
investment measured at cost based on the estimated future
cash flow.

21. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

2018 2017

Kzt FET FETT

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

O B Promissory notes (a) 11,449 11,449
H &= B pE SRR Other long-term receivables (b) 700 700
12,149 12,149
B T A Provision for impairment (12,149) (12,149)

REEYRERERERBE
2—N\FER-B—tEXA=T
ENT9-52:3 18

There was no movement on the provision for impairment of
long-term receivables during the years ended 30 June 2018
and 2017.
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“+— - REEWFE @) 21. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

iz Notes:
(a) RZZE-—N\F~A=1+H (@ Out of the promissory notes of HK$11,449,000 as at 30
811,449,000 ¢ (=& June 2018 (2017: HK$11,449,000), HK$7,828,000 (2017:
—- 4 :11,449,000% 7T ) 2 HK$7,828,000) is secured, interest-free and repayable
A H ER A 7,828,00075 7T by 15 annual instalments commencing on 1 October
— T —+4:7,828,000% 2001. The remaining balance of HK$3,621,000 (2017:
T REER A REHRZ HK$3,621,000) is unsecured, interest-free and repayable by
LT —F+HA-HES TR 13 annual instalments commencing on 15 March 2003. In
8 - HL 823,621,000 70 view of default in repayment of the promissory notes, a full
(ZZF—+t4%:3,621,0007% impairment was made in prior years.

TO)RERR 28 RAHR
“EE=F=A+HHED
TEFEE-ENERER
AERE BERUAEFERE

2R (E

(b) R-ZF—NFEXA=1H" (b) As at 30 June 2018, the balance represents a shareholder’s
ZAER BT HERER loan of HK$700,000 (2017: HK$700,000) advanced to
7],2700,000% 7T (=T —+ an investee company which is interest-free, unsecured
4 :700,0008 ) REE and repayable on 30 June 2018. In view of poor financial
K RHIERR S IR R performance of the investee company, a full impairment
ARZZE—\FRA=1+H was made in prior years.

BE -ZBRZWRERRZ
MBRERE BERNEF
EAEH 2 HERIE -
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= BRBPYE 22. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT
2018 2017
FET FHETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FURE SR Carrying amount at beginning
of the year - 576,843
NE Additions - 9,350
ERZIRITTEFF A Bank loan interest capitalised (note 7)

(B EEt) - 1,527
HE Disposal = (99,161)
& — B AR Disposal of a subsidiary (note 47)

(B EEm ++) - (488,559)
FREESR Carrying amount at end of the year = -

—+= -H7E& 23. INVENTORIES
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
YR Raw materials 46,641 39,274
FBUAK Work in progress 5,148 3,614
SIRK om Finished goods 109,969 127,049
161,758 169,937
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—+m - BESERERIE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
Fi#T FET
HK$000 HK$'000
B 2 FEWGRIE Trade receivables 141,589 124,081
R FEWGRIE R (B 1 1 Less: provision for impairment of
receivables (29,852) (27,996)
B 5 eI FRIE — 558 Trade receivables — net 111,737 96,085

AEE—RIZBITEBEIIRE R
BEPZEE BERTHEEEF
HIREIRTEP ZEERR-
BREPHRERRERER A
£ B LR (B8 FE MR 4 45 R
RIZEH - AR ERRREERE
EHIEE

W B R R R R IR
ERR AL L HEYHAELE
R

o

EE|

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers
according to industry practice together with consideration
of their creditability, repayment history and years of
establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by senior management.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as
at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of
the sale, is as follows:

2018 2017

FET FET

HKS$'000 HK$000

0-30H 0 - 30 days 23,186 32,546
31 -60H 31 - 60 days 29,880 16,894
61 -90H 61— 90 days 20,572 11,023
908 K Over 90 days 38,099 35,622
111,737 96,085

BRI RE49.3FT BB E SN AR AR
SEEREREFPOHERSM
EZEUKIAMS @ WEE T
EERR-

Save as disclosed in note 49.3, there is no concentration of
credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group
has a large number of customers which are internationally
dispersed.
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Z+m - EZEWFE @) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

RiE B8 MERBEERASE
RIBB|HH 2 B 5 WA Z Bk

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at
the reporting date, based on due date and net of provision,

oA : is as follows:
2018 2017
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R HA IR AR R E Neither past due nor impaired 63,108 60,435
#HI0 - 308 0 - 30 days past due 15,666 10,003
#HA31 - 60H 31 - 60 days past due 17,941 5,870
@ Hl61 - 90H 61 — 90 days past due 3,333 3,249
#HI91 - 180H 91 - 180 days past due 11,635 15,206
#HA181 - 365H 181 — 365 days past due - 1,212
#1HA365H MA Over 365 days past due 54 110
111,737 96,085

PR MBI ARE 2 5 R
3 B 2 T R AR
TREF -

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

ERHMEARRIE 2 8 5 RKKIA
WhZREAKEARRIFER
BRZTRAER RIFGELR
BEEERE aRNEEERLE
BEREH BERNBEETEH
Yl - E i EFE R AR
BB - AR E W E L E B

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The

N
(@)

BRBECE S BEFRFAE
MERREERKEMBERET
Ao

Group did not hold any collateral as security or other credit
enhancements in respect of trade receivables that are past
due but not impaired.
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“+m - EZEWFE @) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

B 5 AR 2 R BB 5 A
fRiRALER  BRIFASER /U
ZESREFBZHERTE &
EERT REBREEERBEE
2 FE WA M 5 - B 5 EUEKIR

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly. The movement in the provision for

BEREZZHINT : impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
2018 2017
F#ET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
FHRERR Balance at beginning of the year 27,996 27,789
R RBERRE Impairment losses recognised 1,839 220
PE W =58 Exchange difference 17 (13)
FRERR Balance at end of the year 29,852 27,996

RERERY AKBZEFE
WOk IR B 5l M B B R R TR
18- [ERIRIE 2 B 5 B U RIR S
s R BB R TS -

FBHIR—FAREZ 8 5 RUGK
AZAVPERERES BRI EE
RER ARZREEBBNER
GIaEIEE

At each reporting date, the Group's trade receivables were
individually and collectively determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in default or delinquency in payments.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values
of trade receivables which are expected to be recovered
within one year are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception at the reporting date.

N
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“+EH - URAFEERANER 25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ZEMEBEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
F#ET FET
HKS$'000 HK$°000
BELTIRAZS Listed equity securities in Hong Kong,
BEmE at market value 6,066 5,770

EHRAEFESFZDAFEZ2EER
HERAREERMSAHRmE
RERE

ARFEFABSE 2 EMEER
FARERERNRLERE—&
2INREEESEH T~

UATEFA RS SREES
ATEBBHARRAZ S
A -

A RERRELH

RekReFRBEUTKS

26.

Fair value of the listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their quoted market prices at the
reporting date in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other operating income in
profit or loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following
components:

2018 2017

F#ET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

5 AERITER Short-term bank deposits 1,047,212 =
B 5 NMIRTTAE &R Cash and bank balances 81,452 374,648
1,128,664 374,648
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—tA - HERREER 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(&)

RITAERR IR T B IR T 17 5K I 3R B
BESFE - R — \FEXA
=+ R RERITER TR
NF—E=EATE  EFFH =X
1.51%%2.88% HEVF 5

ARBEERR RITB2ZA
FEEEEMSRTESAE
2 -AAEBRERREADIHE-

RZE—NFERA=1+H F&
BAAREGECE S RIRTT
4R 49 518,427,000 L (=&
—+4F:14,694,00087C) - B
BT AR B AR RERTT 2 773K
SEFEGA ARBIWIEAB
B2 B o AR R R Bl R FESN
B & bl {5 1) 2 45 BEE - 5 0 R AT BE
BEMRE  ANEE R RBERE
EITINEXB 2 IRITHRARE A
HBBINE o

(continued)

The bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The short-term bank deposits are
made for varying periods between one to three months and
earn interest ranged from 1.51% to 2.88% per annum as at
30 June 2018.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values
of the cash at banks are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the short maturity period on
their inception.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounting
to approximately HK$18,427,000 (2017: HK$14,694,000),
which were deposits with banks in Mainland China or held
in hand. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

N
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H

“t+t- ESEMARIE 27. TRADE PAYABLES
2018 2017
F#E T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 ENF0E Trade payables 54,922 58,703

BRRNFIRZERGRERESE
R FE R 19 5 2 Rk T R
RBEBH AEEREERA
Hi 2 B 5 AN SIR Z Bk D AT 20

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of
trade payables of the Group as at the reporting date, based
on the invoice dates, is as follows:

T
2018 2017
FiET FETT
HK$000 HK$000
0-30H 0 - 30 days 13,575 8,488
31 -60H 31 - 60 days 8,395 13,583
61-90H 61 — 90 days 18,961 7,959
90H A Over 90 days 13,991 28,673
54,922 58,703

BHRMNRABEEREES -
- EERREZHRMNRAZR
HEEEENFERS-

Trade payables are short term in nature and hence, the
directors consider the carrying amount of trade payables are
considered to approximate to their fair values.
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—+)\ - RITERK 28. BANK LOANS
RITERRASEZONMT The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as
follows:
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
nBaK Current liabilities
AR—FANEERZ Portion of loans from banks due for
RITERHH repayment within one year
—BER — Guaranteed 55,000 10,000
—BHEAREER — Secured and guaranteed 84,000 89,000
139,000 99,000
AR—FREELEHAB Portion of loans from banks due for
RENERIEX 2 repayment after one year which
RITERHH contain a repayable on demand
clause
—BER — Guaranteed = 20,000
—FEARBEER — Secured and guaranteed 472,000 —
611,000 119,000

N
o
ul
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—+I\ - SRITER @) 28. BANK LOANS (continued)
RZE—NFARA=1H" 81T At 30 June 2018, the bank loans were scheduled to repay as
ERZERRRAROT follows:

2018 2017
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITER: Bank loans:
AR—FNEE Repayable within one year 139,000 99,000
BARE_FEE Repayable in the second year - 20,000
ERE=ZEZFRF Repayable in the third to fifth year,
(BREERME)EER inclusive 472,000 -
611,000 119,000
FEAeBEA B KRR FTR] B The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
KRB AEE. B AaH IR dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
ERBREX 2 & - of any repayment on demand clause.
RZEBE—NFERA=1+H £& At 30 June 2018, the Group's banking facilities were
B RITEERERTYIEEE secured/guaranteed by the followings:
R ER:
(a) XN EEHE@EEY (a) legal charges over the Group’s investment
1,308,400,000/& 7t ( = properties with carrying values of approximately
T —+ 4 37,800,000/ HK$1,308,400,000 (2017: HK$37,800,000) (note
T0) ZIRE W E 2 A E T 16);
0 (BFEE+75) 5
by AEEBEBE®@DFED (b) legal charges over the Group's leasehold land and
11,252,000 T (==& buildings with net carrying values of approximately
—tE%:12,131,000/% HK$11,252,000 (2017: HK$12,131,000) (note 14);
TT)ZHELRIEF Y
EEME (M)
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Z+H\ - RITER #) 28. BANK LOANS (continued)
RZZE-—NFSA=+H && At 30 June 2018, the Group’s banking facilities were
B RITEERMER TFIEBE secured/guaranteed by the followings: (continued)

B/ ER: (B)

© =X K ik EH E 4 (© legal charges over the Group's land use rights with
1,269,000 T (=& carrying values of approximately HK$1,269,000
— -4 :1,305,000% 7T ) (2017: HK$1,305,000) (note 15); and
2 T FRRE 2 VA R
(f&E=E+R) R
(d) K A 7\ & M Z (d) corporate guarantees of HK$857,618,000 (2017:
857,618,000/8 7 ( = & HK$444,503,000) executed by the Company.
— 4 : 444,503,000/%
TC) A AR o
REBATHEZRITER The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ of
611,000,000 T (=T — ¢ HK$611,000,000 (2017: HK$119,000,000) have floating
£ : 119,000,000/ 7T ) 2 F B F interest rates ranging from 2.70% to 3.97% (2017: 1.43%
FENF270%%3.97% (=F t0 2.84%) per annum.

—+EF:1.43%%E2.84% ) °

N
o
~
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—t+h - AEHEEKIE 29. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES
Zl»"*@ﬁﬁi\ft REXBHEENR The Group leases motor vehicles for its normal operating
H-RZE—N\FXA=1H" business. As at 30 June 2018, the total future minimum
$ETFF&E§TE S 2 AR REEBER lease payments under finance leases and their present values
BB REBEAT were as follows:

2018 2017

=IREE =kHEE REHE =EHE
HRRE RE¢E NHBE @z

Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments payments
FET FAET FET FET
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 127 130 377 399
—FRERFEA After one year but within two years 35 36 314 323
162 166 691 722
R RFIBFE T A8 Less: Total future interest expenses = (@ = 31)
HERKRE Present value of lease obligations 162 162 691 691
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=+ - BHREARNKIEA

30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

2018 2017
Fi#T FET
HK$000 HK$'000
mEEE Current liabilities
JERTRA:E A R ZIE (MizE@))  Due to related companies (note (a)) = 576
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
JERAE A AIZE (HizE(b))  Due to related companies (note (b)) 33,793 82,036

(@)

R=F—+tF~A=+H
B - FE B E A B M E 8
BH5EBR AR ([E4] R
HTAEEEEEAR)RE
576,000/ 7T A E - % 8
ER-_F—+tF+tA=+=
HE|HA(EE -

R=-F—N\FXA=+8"
EREEARREZEAS
82,786,000/ 7L (=& —+
4:2,131,0007 7T ) & 1K
BREE EREMEMNT
BREEFHAGRAF ([1E
W BRETAEFEEEA
8 )3 181,778,000/ 7t (=
= — 4 :1,728,0007% 7T )
R-E-_—FRHA-1+/<H
(ZE—tF:ZF—NF
HAZ+/B)2HEE-
& $A3XI8593,000/8 L7
—T-—FtA-+=RH3
HEEREMIFBESE
EihEZERER AR (BE
B #H ) 5IE415,0007% 7T
(== —+% : 403,000 7T)
RZFE_—_FWA=+—H
(ZE2—+tF: ZF— 5’
A=+—R)ZHEE-

Notes:

(@)

As at 30 June 2017, the amount due to E/NEHE 5
ARAF (“EA"), a related company, which Dr. Chan
was a key management personnel, of HK$576,000 was
unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 22 July
2017.

As at 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of amounts
due to related companies of HK$2,786,000 (2017:
HK$2,131,000) were unsecured and interest-free, of which
amount due to BMMEHRKREZAEGR AR ("E
#"), which Dr. Chan is a key management personnel, of
HK$1,778,000 (2017: HK$1,728,000) is due for repayment
on 26 May 2021 (2017: 26 May 2019), an amount due to
#$A of HK$593,000 is due for repayment on 22 July 2021,
and an amount due to JIFIHEFRFEHEZRERA
7], which was owned by Dr. Chan, of HK$415,000 (2017:
HK$403,000) is due for repayment on 21 April 2022
(2017: 21 April 2019).

N
O
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=+ BHREARNKIEA

(#&)

Hiet: (%)

(b)

(%)

RZE—N\EXA=+AH"
ENEHRREZREALE
31,007,000 L (ZF —+
4F : 28,734,000 7T ) & K
B o kR-_ZT—NFt
A=+—RB(Z=—+t%F:=
T-NFERA=1+—H)FH
BE mMEmSEHEAT
BEFELTS% (Z T —+
F:4.75% )5t E -

RZTE—A"FE~A—H"
R83E 2 BlFamous Keyi§—%
RN A A B8 U BE MMSAR 19
(R B 5E = +(a)FF it ) 2 /]
BREEMELEZASE
58,170,000/ 7t & 18 2 2 23
AEgzE—_T—h&FE=A
=t+t—H-R=-E—+FX
A =-+H ' fEfFamous Key
FKIE 2 BRE % 851,171,000
BTAERR RERRZ
T-hFE=ZA=1+—RH%
HEZ mMEKRASEDE
™5 EF K7 34%t & o
58,170,000/ T AN & B A &
E-T-\FA=1+HL
FEIEE-

30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continuec)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

As at 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of amount due
to /8%, of HK$31,007,000 (2017: HK$28,734,000) is
unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 31
July 2019 (2017: 31 May 2019). Its carrying amount was
calculated using a market interest rate of 4.75% (2017:
4.75%) per annum.

On 1 June 2016, Famous Key, a related company, renewed
the maturity date of the debt due of the principal amount
of HK$58,170,000 to 31 March 2019, which was originally
arisen from a convertible note in connection to the
acquisition of shares of MMS as detailed in note 20(a).
As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of the amount
due to Famous Key of HK$51,171,000 was unsecured,
interest-free and due for repayment on 31 March 2019.
Its carrying amount was calculated using a market interest
rate of 7.34% per annum. The principal amount of
HK$58,170,000 was fully repaid during the year ended 30
June 2018.
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=t+— T IE 31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
2018 2017
BE &% BE =1
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

F#T FET TAT TAT
HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

BHEEAD Forward currency contracts - - - (143)
R-ZB—tFA=+H8 ' &wH As at 30 June 2017, the forward currency contracts were
B ESANEETE R—FR denominated in British Pounds and maturity was less than
ZIH7 - one year.
=+ MHiEREAR 32. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES
2018 2017
F#ET FEIT
HKS$000 HK$'000
nBaE Current liabilities
—MBEREE — Financial guarantee liabilities - 7,216
EREAE Non-current liabilities
—MBEREE — Financial guarantee liabilities - 9,921
- 17,137

N
-
—
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=+= - BHEEFREE @ 32. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

N
N

RZZE——F+—ANH =
T-—NWNE+A=ZFHAHEK=-F
—R"E=ZA+—B -ARAEMN
—MERTAI R AL HE
REE@E —HeErEZSE
ENBARFMITLASESD
B A A R #470,000,0007T (48
£ #1582,800,00058 7T ) »
AR #200,000,0007T (48 %
R #3252,800,00078 7T) B A K
#110,000,0007C (# 5 R4
132,000,000/ 7T ) 2 $R1T{E E 7l
BRMIBERE L - EREAH
L iRITE IR L B BRR T 5 B
AEHEABHAF ZFERAF-Z
ERGERARRZETHER
FTERG BEE—TFBRA
MR-—_ZFE——F+—AN\H =
Z—NF+A=FTHEER=_ZE—RX
FZA+—BZREAEE-

R=ZZE—R"FENLANLB AAF
IN—MRIT AR AT — D15
HANREBE—HAEREY
2EWMBARFMEINASER
AR #773,300,0007C (8% 7
#9897,000,000/8 7T ) Z RITIEE
B E RIS EIRE 4 - B (R ER
HIRTEREHE BT —RF
+—At+ A ABERFAAXEH=
Fo-ZBERHERARNE —IEA
THEBERITERS GHE—F
HBERBBEA-—ZT—XRFNLAN
HeAERBHARZZE—F+
A=BZBHAERE-

(continued)

On 8 November 2012, 30 October 2014, 11 March
2016, the Company entered into agreements in favour
of a bank in relation to the provision of a financial
guarantee contract of a banking facility in a principal
amount of RMB470,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$582,800,000), RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$252,800,000) and RMB110,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$132,000,000) respectively
entered by a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint venture.
The guarantee period lasts for a total of five years, three
years and five years respectively from the date of grant of
the aforesaid bank loans. These transactions constituted
discloseable and major transactions of the Company and
further details were disclosed in the announcements dated 8
November 2012, 30 October 2014 and 11 March 2016.

On 9 September 2016, the Company, entered into an
agreement in favour of a bank in relation to the provision
of a financial guarantee contract of a banking facility
in principal amount of RMB773,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$897,000,000) entered by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a joint venture. The guarantee period
lasted for a total of three years from the date of grant of
the bank loan on 16 November 2016. This transaction
constituted a discloseable transaction and major transaction
of the Company and further details were disclosed in the
announcement and circular dated 9 September 2016 and 3
October 2016 respectively.
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=+= - BiEREE @ 32. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

AL —HeErEZE
B M B A RE R E & TR
TZHBHER NAREEH
BEREHANRBL AR ZAT
BE# AR ¥9,879,0005T (B
12,405,000/ T) - AR ¥
1,436,000t (#8% 521,816,000
BIL) AR®1,360,0007T
(B Z751,622,0008 78) & A
R #18,600,0007T (# % ®
21,647,0007% 7T ) - B4R 1E 5 —
MEERERE (MET) - #
BENGEL¥ 2R EAS
BRI FRSBEESREVH
MRAKR AR R BEREE
RERTTE R L B 81 - BA S IR
RABEBESEBBRTERERS
NEHEEUWA -

RZB—XFENLANBTLEHB
EREN% AREERRZAT
RZZE—=—F+—AN\B ==&
—mE+A=TAR-ZT—REF
A+ BN ZHBERSE
WzmBEM- AL HEMK
EREE 2 RE % %4,377,000
BILERIEER YRBE=Z
—tFANAZTHILFEE 2B

I

RBE_Z—\FRA=1THL
FELHE-—RAEEER AR
RERRIBREREL  MBE
REBEZRESEE R IERER
Wit AL E—ReEEE 2 KRS
B — &7 e

(continued)

In relation to the aforesaid financial guarantees granted to
a bank over the repayment of a loan by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of a joint venture, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts at the dates of grant of approximately
RMB9,879,000 (equivalent to HK$12,405,000),
RMB1,436,000 (equivalent to HK$1,816,000),
RMB1,360,000 (equivalent to HK$1,622,000) and
RMB18,600,000 (equivalent to HK$21,647,000)
representing a deemed capital contribution to a joint
venture (note 19), had been adjusted to the carrying
amount of the interests in joint ventures and simultaneously,
the said amount was recognised as financial guarantee
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Subsequent to the grant dates of the bank loans, the
financial guarantee liabilities were amortised to income over
the respective bank loan guarantee periods.

Upon entering the financial guarantee contract on 9
September 2016, the Company was released from all
the previous financial guarantee contracts entered on 8
November 2012, 30 October 2014 and 11 March 2016.
Accordingly, the respective carrying amounts of the
financial guarantee liabilities of HK$4,377,000 have been
derecognised and recognised in the profit or loss during the
year ended 30 June 2017.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, upon the disposal
of a joint venture, the Company was released from the
financial guarantee contract and the carrying amounts of
the financial guarantee liabilities were derecognised and
included as part of the gain on disposal of a joint venture.

N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m 425 B i8R F T

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE_ZT—)/\FRA=ZTHLFE

N
D

=+= - R ERNERM 33. LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING

ZEHK COMPANY
FE TR IR B B AR R - dm R The amount due is unsecured, interest bearing at 1.5% per
15%stERR-_E_FTFENA annum and due for repayment on 24 September 2020.

— T+ BEIEER-

=+m - hﬂzﬂz$h1 zEe 34. LOAN FROM A CONTROLLING

7 SHAREHOLDER
2018 2017
Fi&T FET
HK$000 HK$'000
mBaE Current liabilities
TR R 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder
(P &E (b)) (note (b)) - 4,606
ERFBEE Non-current liabilities
R R IR 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder
(MizE@)) (note (a)) 4,742 -

Mt - Notes:

(a) RZZE-—NFRNA=T+ (a) As at 30 June 2018, loan of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
H BRELBN-—ZFAR to HK$4,742,000) is advanced from Dr. Chan and is
#4,000,0007 (#85 R unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 25
4,742,0008 70) 2 B3R #% October 2020.

BERRERR 2ERRZ
Z_ZEF+A=-+HAEH
BiE-

(b) RZZE—tEtF~NA=T+ (b) As at 30 June 2017, loan of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
H BRELBN-—ZFAR to HK$4,606,000) was advanced from Dr. Chan and was
#4,000,0007 (#85 R unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 25

4,606,000/8 7T ) 2 B 3K #% October 2017.
,\w%ﬂ}fwﬁﬁ BENMKRZ
tiﬂﬂ + 7 B35

mu
%ﬂﬁ
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=+h - EERE(BEE) 35. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
/&g
T ARREBHERAZEE The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
BB (EE) /BB UK recognised at the reporting date and the movements during
RAFERBAFEZEH: the current and prior years:
W -BER
B R
ERENR
HRREZ MERE e R IE
NEERE e L Bt
Fair value
adjustment
on property,
plant and
equipment,
land use  Accelerated
rights and tax Provision for
mining right depreciation  receivables Total

FET FET TET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

RZE—/FtHA—Hz Balanceat 1July 2016

&8 147,655 (190) (5,509) 141,956
P R Exchange realignment (2,013) - - (2,013)
RERNBRES Credited to profit or loss for

the year (573) - - (573)

RZE—tEAA=Z+HE Balance at 30 June 2017
—F-t£tA—-Hz and 1 July 2017

g3 145,069 (190) (5,509) 139,370

[ 5 A Exchange realignment 4,260 - - 4,260
REREZES Credited to profit or loss for

the year (10,568) - - (10,568)

WZE—-)\EXA=+HZ Balance at 30 June 2018
e 138,761 (190) (5,509) 133,062

N
-
ul
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=+h - BEHE(EE) 35. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
/ afE @ (continued)
T EERHEEE 22N The following amounts, determined after appropriate
RE MBI R TR AR - offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position:
2018 2017
FETT FET
HK$'000 HKS$000
FEEHIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 138,824 145,132
EIEFLIBE B Deferred tax assets (5,762) (5,762)
133,062 139,370

AREBHXEHRBERED
213,330,000 L (=& —+
4 : 178,760,000/ 7T ) ' ;2 F 5t
BEBTAREHEEZER
B8 2 A A2 KPR FE R &=
Fl o EERAT K AT BE 5 o 2K FE AR A
R ABRZERDAHIEE
B BRI RSB EERE
ERBBEE - APHAHEEIE
85,455,000/ L (Z T — £ :
74,808,000 7T ) iR EE =T
Z=F(ZE—tF 22
F) (BEZF)2TRAEE
B o Hth 7K B A 54 TH /E5 18 AT B PR

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$213,330,000
(2017: HK$178,760,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$85,455,000 (2017: HK$74,808,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2023 (2017: 2022). Other
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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=175 BAE 36. SHARE CAPITAL
BETERIRARERZ SN The movements in the issued ordinary share capital during
e the year are as follows:
2018 2017
LERHE FET  EERHEE AT
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares HK$'000 shares HK$ 000
BEITRER: Issued and fully paid:
REMRER At beginning and end of the year 6,831,182,580 560,673  6,831,182,580 560,673
=+t RE-XEER 37. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY
A

REE Group
RNEE 2 RNFEKBEFE R The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
REBES s SREREERE therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
BKRZ25 - consolidated statement of changes in equity.
E At AR B Q&2 58N Other reserve represents the difference between the
Rz T S5 2 (R B LR U B 3E1E consideration paid for the additional interest in the
HlE RS B ER e ISR R AT subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest's share of the
TIEGIERER 2 EEREBR assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement
= of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the

non-controlling interests.

N
-
~
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PR ERAR FYRE
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(0]

=+t FE-FEER 37. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY
Kpa =) (continued)
PIN/NE| Company
BRERE TILRREE KA Bl @t
Share Non- Capital
option distributable  contribution Retained
reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RIZ-RFEtA—BZ&#H  Balanceat 1uly 2016 4,269 273,606 22,236 208,943 509,054
RN REE 2 R Recognition of share-based
(WE=+N) compensation (note 38) 2,140 = = = 2,140
HEBEAIRS Transaction with owners 2,140 = = = 2,140
EREH Profit for the year - - - 736,336 736,336
FREENEESE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 736,336 736,336

RIB—+FRXAZTER Balance at 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017

“Z—tFtA-HZEH 6,409 273,606 22,236 945,279 1,247,530
FRRH Profit for the year - - - 528,829 528,829
FRZEWEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 528,829 528,829
R-ZF-/\E7xA=+HZ&% Balance at 30 June 2018 6,409 273,606 22,236 1,474,108 1,776,359

AA D IRFER/R —NLNMOF
Apmlz EBREERSK2.50
BITHIRE0. 108 TR E A 2 4

B

Non-distributable reserve represents the premium arising
on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares of the
Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in 1994.
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=1\ - EBRZH#ERTE 38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Apwz Bkt 8 ([&at
2R -_ZE-—ZFFLA+=H
BEARRNBIBCRILE - %5812 A
MR-

ERETMELBEA TR
BALERBBRAENBBALH
Bip

0) ARAE) - AERIARR BB
DAFEHARE T 2
EE (BmEEBERE
B S&THRAERE
T RE EE(E2EH
17 FERIT RB IETT
BEFR)BEH MRES
RS EHAREZIRE
MERELER (HES
BRE) 3k

(i)  EAREES -

RBEEZVARUT Z2&EE
()RR RN PR S a2 15 h R R
B (BAREXR)EBXM
FRMERABHHE B
ARARRONERZZR OB
AR AEEXAER AT
BREXRMB 2 FHRTE -

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 13
July 2010. The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten
years.

The board of directors (“Board”) may in its discretion, invite
any following eligible person to take up the options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) or consultant of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any investee who, as
determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group; or

(ii) any investee.

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; and (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the option.

N
O
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=1\ - EBRR#ERE @ 38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

N
=

AEBALTWEREZT T B
R EE A NERETAE
REOEZH - EAROERR &
BABRAARBZ B TIER
BHRE - BAITHERBZT S
2 2 EEREm T RN B
HAERBORMERARRFE
BITRRAD 210% ¢ 3R (i) AR AR
BrE BTN 230% ° BrIEER
RERRARREARE LitE &
RIRAMEM 1218 A B3R - BAATfER
TER2HE ERE (BER
1718 R i R AT 58 2 s AR A ) Th 3%
TR TBIT 2R RN B2
TMEEBBAR R EREZHTRA
21% °

BREMRERESTENRAE
DEERIER NG S ARA - 1%
HRAGERZZE L A HH
H AT GBEEEERLAH
HEEr+F2BH-

RZZE—RE+—A=H AR
AIREZET EIMEE TESRE
40,000,00017 & A 4 - 1T (B /&
FHR0.1498 L - B R H B
A 2 Y1 B {8 AR0. 14578 7T ©

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the adoption date; or (i) 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the share
capital of the Company then in issue unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
be more than ten years from the offer date.

On 3 November 2016, the Company granted 40,000,000
options to certain of its directors, with exercise price
of HK$0.149 per share under the Scheme. The closing
share price immediately preceding the date of grant was
HK$0.145.
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=)\ - BRERE @) 38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
REBEZZE—N\FRZF—+F Details of the outstanding share options under the Scheme
NAZTBELEFE: EAE+¥|J—FEE| held by the directors of the Company during the years
RARESHAE Z MARITEBRK ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

BZFBEWT:

BRENE
Number of share options

REARE R AH i BRiTER 2] MR EmfriE REF

Exercise Atthe Granted Exercised Atthe

price per beginning during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period share of the year the year the year the year

73
HKS
218
RE2 Z2-MERATAA ZR-MERATAREZECMERATAR 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Kel, Vicki 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
R Z2-mERATAA ZR-MERATABEZECMERATAR 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
BEE “E-MmELA=TEA “R-MELA-TRRE-R-MELAZTRA 0421 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 25 July 2014 25 July 2014 to 24 July 2024
REs “E-hEtAtR ZR-RFtAtAECRCRFLASA 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Ke, Vicki 7 luly 2015 7 uly 2015 to 6 July 2025
R “E-hEtAtR ZR-RFtAtAECRCRFLASA 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 7 luly 2015 7 uly 2015 to 6 July 2025
fHER “E-REtAER ZR-RFtAtAECRCRFLASA 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 71y 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
BAR “E-REtAER ZR-RFtAtAECRCRFLASA 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 71y 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
REs Z2E1-A=H B NFT-AZREZECE1-AZA 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wal Kel, Vicki 3 Novernber 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
R Z2E1-A=H B NFT-AZREZECE1-AZA 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
fHER Z2E1-A=H B NFT-AZREZECE1-AZA 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 3 Novernber 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
BEE “E-AET-AZR B RET-AZRE-RAET-ACA 0149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 3 Novernber 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
110,000,000 - - 110,000,000

No
N
—
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

EhiEse
Number of share options

REALE BB fiEd SRR RET] ERRH R RER

Exercise Atthe Granted Erercised Atthe

price per beginning during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period share of the year the year the year the year

AT
HKS
2017
REH “E-mERATAR “Z-mERATAREZECMERATNR 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
R “E-mERATAR “Z-mERATAREZECMERATR 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
-yt ZE-MELA-TIA ZE-MEtACTRAZZS-MELA-TRA 0.121 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 25 July 2014 25 July 2014 to 24 July 2024
REH “Z-REtAtA “Z-REtRtREZSCRELANA 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
R “Z-REtAtA “Z-REtRtREZSCRELANA 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
fHER “Z-REtAtA “Z-REtRtREZSCRELANA 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
-yt “Z-REtAtA “Z-REtRtREZSCRELANA 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
REH “E-551+-A=H 3 E+-AZRE-RET-AZA 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
R “E-551+-A=H 3 E+-AZRE-RET-AZA 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
fHER “F-AFt-R=H 3 E+-AZRE-RET-AZA 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
-yt “E-551+-A=H 3 E+-AZRE-RET-AZA 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
70,000,000 40,000,000 - 110,000,000

8 AR AT A A S A 3 1T 1R
BER0I7TIBITL(ZT—EF:
0.17977T) + MM A1 T B AR AE
ZMFEFEFEeRE N FEH "7
F(ZE—EF:8F) -

Weighted average exercise price of outstanding share
options is HK$0.179 (2017: HK$0.179) and the weighted
average remaining contractual life of outstanding share
options is approximately 7 years (2017: 8 years).
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=)\ - BRERE @) 38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

HE-Z—+HA=THILHF For the year ended 30 June 2017, the following table listed

& TR BB EEAERD the key inputs to the Binomial Option Pricing Model, which

FELITRIZM AR A RIEMEEZ was valued by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an

“HEHAETEERA ZCETEHA independent professional valuer, used for calculating the fair

B ARGEREBE-T—tF value of the share options granted during the year ended 30

NA=ZTHIEFERT 2 Bk June 2017:

ZAFE:

2017

i A A Date of grant —E—RF

+—A=H
3 November 2016

& (E Share price HK$0.1497% 7T

1I1EE Exercise price HK$0.149/8 7T

TEEHR i (Fizt@)) Expected volatility (note (a)) 68.00%

R TEETEH (D)) Expected life of the share options (note (b)) 10£E years

=R e A R (PP EE(e)) Risk-free rate (note (c)) 1.010%

TEEHAR B2 Expected dividend yield =

Hat - Notes:

(@) TEENR IR : UM ER B R (a) Expected volatility: being the approximate historical
i B BRI+ F AR R AR5 volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company in
W {8 2 JE S R0 the past 10 years immediately before the date of grant.

(b) PR 2 TR G HA : (T ET (b) Expected life of the share options: being the effective life of
TR R EHS 2 AR the share options estimated from the expected exercising
B - time frame.

© mERAE : WBERE B © Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity of
HNE B @ B 5 2 B B s Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.

No
N
W
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BE_ZT—+tF~A=ZFTHL
FZ » 40,000,00017 B BRI A %
B AARNES SR S - M AR FE DA R 1
AR 2 3R B12,140,000/8 T E
e AR ZEEEITER
TERRRE 2 LARRAD B Ef 2 SREM R
T EBEORBEAER HES
BEFT ABRERE - BRBIA
R EE RN BERZ HRR
S EERAE-

=+ BAREZMH

R R

38.

39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2017, 40,000,000 share
options vested immediately on the grant date and the
respectively share-based compensation of HK$2,140,000
was recognised in profit or loss. Such amount of share-
based compensation expenses in relation to the issue of the
share option had been recognised in profit or loss and the
corresponding amount of which had been credited to the
share option reserve. No liabilities were recognised as these
are equity settled share-based payment transactions.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

2018 2017
Kt F#T FAEIT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
NGNS 2 Interests in subsidiaries 1,199,964 1,186,562
NN - Xy Interests in joint ventures - 37,489
1,199,964 1,224,051
MENEE Current assets
FENHRIE Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
H b & UL 5RIB receivables 951 271
N ENE B Due from subsidiaries 1,278,835 641,462
HekReER Cash and cash equivalents 211,392 43,257
1,491,178 684,990




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE-_ZT—/\FRA=THILFE

Annual Report 2018 “F

=+ AR ZHTH

Rz &)

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

2018 2017
it F#T FET
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
mEAE Current liabilities
Hih BN EATE A Other payables and accruals (3,785) (4,694)
FEAST B 8 A Bl 5k I8 Due to subsidiaries = (27,511)
PEEREE Financial guarantee liabilities = (7,216)
TIERE S Provision for tax (325) (325)
(4,110) (39,746)
RBEEFE Net current assets 1,487,068 645,244
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
FEAS RAE A Rl 5RI8 Due to related companies = (51,171)
BAIERR A RIR 2 EF Loan from ultimate holding
company (350,000) -
PEEREE Financial guarantee liabilities = (9,921)
(350,000) (61,092)
BEFE Net assets 2,337,032 1,808,203
W EQUITY
f& A Share capital 36 560,673 560,673
(Gt Reserves 37 1,776,359 1,247,530
HE AR Total equity 2,337,032 1,808,203
RERESE On behalf of the Directors
B {2 3L Chan Wai Lap, Victor
=Z Director
BREEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Zz2F Director

No
N
ul
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RZZB-NFXA=+H FZE

40. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018

N
()}

MEBARZFBNT: are as follows:

EMAL/ R BHRRR/
%8 gk BETRAFE FAEKEZEIN  EEEH

Place of

incorporation/ Particulars of paid-up Percentage of

registration registered/issued equity attributable
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities

E# E3
Direct Indirect

Brangredi Limited B LRRIBT - 100 KEEHES

Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Jewellery trading
CJ. (UK) Limiteg* EE 1,000 SHRABEIREZ EBK - 100 REEMHE

United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares of GBP1 each Jewellery wholesaling
BNERERAF R E@ER100ET - 100 #REZ5
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 Diamond trading
Continental Investment Company Limited &% Z3@%100,0007% T 100 - REBR

Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100,000 Investment holding
BRGE (1) BRARA hEAKE B RA35,000,000 70 - 100 REEMRE

Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$35,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing
BNARE EHHERAF R L1%10,000,000% T 100 - REERMRERME
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing

and wholesaling

BMpERRAA &k ERRAT - 100 #&iRE
Continental Property Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$2 Property investment
Continental Universe Limited RERLHE WrERAEEIET SRR 100 - RERR

British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
DCGS Management Service Limited &b T5210,000,0005 7T - 100 REER/ RUEERE

Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000,000 Investment holding/providing

management services

BEREARAA BB E1BIR500,000/5 70 100 - REBR
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$500,000 Investment holding
Golden Creation Jewellery Limited &b LiRiR1,000,005%7T - 100 HEEHES

Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1,000,005 Jewellery trading
RAERRBRAA &b 37HR6,000,00078 T 100 - REBRK
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Factory Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$6,000,000 Investment holding
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M+ - EBRE @ 40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
EMAL/ R R ERERM/
&8 ik BETRAFE AAREEZEML  IEEH
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of paid-up Percentage of
registration registered/issued equity attributable
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
B ik
Direct Indirect
A\ EEERAR KR BHRRA21,000,000% T - 100 RERERBERE
Mainland China Paid up capital of US$21,000,000 Mining and exploration of
mineral reserves
IATEYREERAR" B B BRAARB18,605,0407 - 100 HEEHTE
Mainland China Paid up capital of RMB18,605,040 Jewellery retailing
Patford Company Limited B @1R10,0008 7 - 100 WERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
Realford Company Limited B @1R10,0008 7 - 100 WERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
Yett Holdings Limited RBRLHEE 100k ERAEIET, EER 100 - RERR
British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
Master Gold Development Limited RBRLHEE RAREIETZ EBR - 100 HRERR
British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
REREBRAR B 1REEETZ ERR - 100 MERE
Pacific Gate Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Property investment
BREIBERAA &b REEIET SRR - 100 RERER
Top Grace International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Investment holding
# R B AREZ M Z I B E i Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the
- Mainland China.
" BREMERDR—ABREE » Limited liability company — joint venture between domestic
NEA& e investors and Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau investors.
* FARBBLIEERGFAIE p Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.
BRBARARNIZEERZ The aggregate net assets of these subsidiaries not audited
HMKE QR EZFEH L by BDO amounted to approximately 0.1% of the Group's
EEREZZMNBAREE total net assets.

FERBREAREEERE
#FAXI0.1% o

No
N
~
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40.

41.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

As at 30 June 2018 and 2017, none of the subsidiaries had
issued any debt securities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At end of the reporting periods, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

2018 2017
F#ET FET
HKS$'000 HK$000
RE—HeELEER Guarantees given to banks in
RITEERMEMARIT connection with banking
YEH 2 IR facilities granted to joint venture = 412,763

RZE—tFA=1+H &
B A6 &b MBITEL ERT
FEEPEERZRITEER
& B ) A 49412,763,0007% T °
BIERBER  WRTT AR D
EHER  BIAREEAAERIR
TERZEF- R —EF
A=1+H HARESRAEZEE
MR ARBEEEZHETK i)
WEFAREFBRBEREAT 2R
EEL B E -

As at 30 June 2017, the banking facilities granted to the
joint venture subject to guarantees given to the bank by
the Group was utilised to the extent of approximately of
HK$412,763,000. Under the guarantees, the Group would
be liable to pay the banks if the banks are unable to recover
the loans. As at 30 June 2017, no provision for the Group's
obligation under the guarantee contract has been made as
the directors considered that it was not probable that the
repayment of the loans would be in default.
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42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At reporting date, the Group had outstanding capital

57 2 B 2N commitments as follows:
2018 2017
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$°000

BRI AE R B - Contracted but not provided for:

W B k& Property, plant and equipment - 696
TEME Investment properties 7,365 =
7,365 696

m+= - BEHERH
(@ fEBHEA

AEENEEHER
BEh M —mmx (K&
TR HEBER=F -
FHEHMITEREIAE
E-R_FT—-N\FXA
=+ A ETAHEgE
HEZHHBER AEH

43. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases one of its property (note 16) under
operating lease arrangements, with lease negotiated
for a term of three years. None of the leases include
contingent rentals. At 30 June 2018, the Group had
total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling
due as follows:

REBP ZRREEAE
WRaEEEmT
2018 2017
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$°000
—F R Within one year 912 912
BE_EFERF In the second to fifth year, inclusive
(BHEEEMSF) 684 1,596
1,596 2,508

N
O
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(b)

ERAEA

AEBUKEHERH
MRETHEHE BAEY
XhBIEE -HE (R
RaRAEE) HEEE X
e EEKTER B
Hh—z=2=F(ZF—t
F—E=ZF)TF Y
EEREIARAEE
HEBAXTIMHEHEL
RS T HE M EHER

fiFR3K -

RZE—N\FNA=+
B EZ A EELEHE

ZEB|IHIEM - AN BRI
REMEE N KERLT :

43. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain shops, office properties and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements.
Leases (including contingent rental) are negotiated at
fixed rate or with reference to level of business and
terms ranging from one to three years (2017: one
to three years), with an option to renew the leases
and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date or at
dates as mutually agreed between the Group and
respective landlords.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling were due as follows:

2018 2017

Fi&T FEIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

—F RN Within one year 2,735 2,654
F_EFERF In the second to fifth year, inclusive

(BEEEME) 1,775 3,986

4,510 6,640
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a)

&
A

S AEERERNAE T 55

% 5e

RBE_Z—-/\FRA
=THIEFE REEH
—HBFELT2EHE 2
BEAREEEERNS
f 31,430,000 7T (=
L — £ :1,325,000%
TL) °

REBZE=_ZT—\FXA
=+tHLEFE X&E
H—HHRELELE
ERFEEEBABZH
HERAREELEEERNES
326,998,000/ T ( —
LT — -+ :3,613,0005
TL) °

REBZE=_ZT—/\FXA
=t+HLFE AEEH
ERRIE IR 2 BERE
S EANBRTE 2 5 8
% /485,000 L (= F
—+4:797,0008 7 ) °

RBE_Z—-/\FRA
=THIEFE REEW
|EAENBARRAH
TEEHY/ ) EE2ERE
ZBERE ZFEREZ
—Z=— % :870,000/%
TL) °

44,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, during the year, the Group entered into the

following related party transactions.

(a

During the year ended 30 June 2018, imputed
interest expenses of HK$1,430,000 (2017:
HK$1,325,000) were incurred to a related company
of which is wholly-owned by Dr. Chan.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, imputed
interest expenses of HK$6,998,000 (2017:
HK$3,613,000) were incurred to a related company
of which Dr. Chan is a director and key management
personnel.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, interest
expenses of HK$485,000 (2017: HK$797,000) were
paid/payable to Dr. Chan in relation to the loan from
a controlling shareholder.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, no interest
expenses (2017: HK$870,000) were paid/payable to
a related company of which was wholly-owned by
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, an executive director of the
Company.

N
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RBEZZT—N\FAH
=+HIEFE AEEH
RS A EIRE 2 B
Bt R R AR IERR A )
2 A2 5 & %3,758,000
BIL(ZF — £ F:

=) o

TEETEA SR

SAARERAMRAS TR
EEABHRMEIETHIE

44, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(e) During the year ended 30 June 2018, interest
expenses of HK$3,758,000 (2017: Nil) were paid/
payable to ultimate holding company in relation to
loan from ultimate holding company.

(f) Compensation of key management personnel

Included in employee benefit expenses are key
management personnel compensation and comprise

H: the following:
2018 2017
FiET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
HHEE R Short term employee benefits 12,686 14,500
BER 2R A Post-employment benefits 442 596
ARG 1D A EE 2 B Share-based compensation - 2,140
13,128 17,236
Hih eI RIE R EST B (@  Included in other payables and accruals, an amount

A eEEN&EER
A 7] 5K 183,441,000/ TT
—ZF—+ 4% :2,564,000
BIL)  REEA - RE
RBRERER -

P 5E PO + PU(a) = (e) & P8 + U (g)
Pt 2 B8 A+ 5 Mgk _Eh
FHAE - HAS TR E 2 BBERT

%o

of HK$3,441,000 (2017: HK$2,564,000) was due
to ultimate holding company, which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The related party transaction in respect of note 44(a)-(e) and
44(g) also constitute connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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BEHRZEXHE
g

BREE=1+=+=-=+m-
PO+ () = (e) & 7O + P (g) P 3%
BEI RRABRAFRFEA
BERARBZEBRILHATA
ARREFERIEERERE
BERER 2 ENEARS &
BEsk a4

M+7% ~ INE—EME 2 F

RZT—tFtA+EH K
£ E B Hillcharm Limited ([ &
AR —FEE S
W B Ontrack Ventures Limited
([Ontrack |) 23 E /TR A K&
Ontrack& X E 5 2 & 32 &) fH
S #R{E%1,180,000,0007%
70 (A YEH & T3 %) © Ontrack
APacific Gate Investment
Limited z £ J& 2 &) - M Pacific
Gate Investment LimitedZ &
BEABANEAEFE232
5 2 b 58 (3 48 T A8 49 /35,798
FHR) e mIBW LR R AR
RN _T—+F+ A THE
ZIREFFRIRE EHOER - R
E—+E+A-_THHEER
—FHBHNA AR ABEAEE
—+tFNAZ+RAZBERA-

#E KB 491,179,883,0007%
TCAIR & A& e PR TR YR I
TREEBEHIES  WEHE
R 5B ARFIEWIEE E - Frit
BEEMIAZEEL MEXK—
HER - RIER 5 E ARIIER
REE 2 BEMERE GBI
R E Y -

46.

IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in note 30, 33, 34, 44(a)-(e) and 44(qg),
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered
into or subsisted during the financial year.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 17 July 2017, the Group entered into a preliminary sale
and purchase agreement with Hillcharm Limited (“Seller”) to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Ontrack Ventures
Limited (“Ontrack”) and all the inter-company loan owing
by Ontrack to the Seller at an aggregate consideration
of HK$1,180,000,000, subject to certain adjustment.
Ontrack is the holding company of Pacific Gate Investment
Limited which principal asset is a piece of land located at
No. 232 Wan Chai Road, Hong Kong with a site area of
approximately 5,798 sq.ft. The acquisition was completed
on 25 October 2017 upon the approval by the shareholders
of the Company in the extraordinary general meeting held
on 20 October 2017. Further details of which are set out in
the Company’s circular dated 25 September 2017.

The adjusted consideration of approximately
HK$1,179,883,000 was satisfied by cash. This transaction
has been accounted for as an acquisition of assets as the
acquisition does not meet the definition of a business
combination. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed do
not constitute a business. The transaction was accounted
for as an acquisition of investment property in the ordinary
course of the Group's property investment business.

N
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46. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired was recognised

BERBENOT: at the date of acquisition as follows:
ANEE
Fair value
TBT
HK$000
Fr i i & =R A Net asset acquired
BB Investment property 1,179,773
T SRR IE K2 EL th & W sk IE Prepayments and other receivables 230
Hh & 5018 Other payables (120)
BEFE Net assets 1,179,883
Wi — B ARMEELZ Net cash outflow in connection
R mHFeE: with the acquisition of a subsidiary:
g R & IR & SRER Cash and cash equivalent balance acquired =
BARE Consideration paid 1,179,883
1,179,883
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RZE—XRFNATNAAE K&
Bl —mhEEHBE([EEW
&) Bl ARERER—F
BUE=FHEEHEERERRA
A ([FEHE] - ARAzHAEEE
B A A 2B ARz & H#
FEHEXEBAEE 2 ARREER
R (B A1,133,500,00078 7T * 7B
REKHEZBRPYEZ = @
EEERE ([HEFE]) 2AH
EREESEEREE TEER
BEFEDFHEAREIRAERE
133,500,000/ JT °

RZZE—RF+—A=+H" W
EEIHEEZENK MR E E His
EITHAEEZERCABENRE
/993,627,000 T ° i &£ E 18
BRIEFTEALERS HE—F
HERBHAE-_ZT—XF+A
ZTN\BZBRHAHE -

On 19 September 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “S&P”) pursuant to which
the Group has agreed to sell the entire equity interest in
Well Friendship Investment Limited (“Well Friendship”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and to
assign the inter-group loans owing by Well Friendship to
the Group to an independent third party at an aggregate
consideration of HK$1,133,500,000, subject to adjustments
on certain assets and liabilities and the reduction of a total
consideration of HK$133,500,000 upon the completion of
the sale of the 3 pre-sold floors of under property under
development as at the completion date of the disposal
("Disposal”).

On 30 November 2016, the Disposal was completed and
the adjusted consideration received was HK$993,627,000
after adjustment in accordance with the S&P. The Disposal
constituted a very substantial disposal transaction and
further details were disclosed in the circular dated 28
October 2016.

N
ul
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47. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continuec)

The net assets of Well Friendship (exclusion of the 3

presold floors) at the completion date of the disposal on 30

November 2016 were as follows:

FEIT
HK$'000
FHEZEE(&fF): Assets/(Liabilities) disposed of:
KEMZE Investment property 477,830
BERAPYIE Property under development 488,559
TARTFRIE - =& K H fth R UL GRIE Prepayment, deposits and other receivables 462
RERRESEH Cash and cash equivalents 479
RITER Bank loans (242,370)
NalEER Inter-company loans (195,955)
HEARIBREREA Other payables and accruals (2,850)
I8 Taxation (4,545)
BEFE Net assets 521,610
MHEFEEERITER Repayment of bank loan in connection
with the Disposal* 242,370
HEQREER Disposal of inter-company loans 195,955
RIETTHE FIERFE & 2R Cost incurred during Disposal 11,401
& —ERB ARz s Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 22,291
993,627
IATEIIER 2 RE Consideration satisfied by:
He Cash 993,627
uJ IRITERENTREME S @ The bank loan was settled upon the receipt of part of the

WA D R BEIEE

consideration from the purchaser upon completion.
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M+t~ HE—FEME A 47. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
(&)
ERLESE R RESEHE The analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
MAFEAITAT - in respect of the Disposal is as follows:
FAET
HK$'000
BUIR & RE Cash consideration received 993,627
FIEERERRSEH Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (479)
AREERNETHEEER Cost incurred by the Group during disposal
EEAE 2 PN (11,401)
FHRLHEFE Re RREERH Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
MAHEE of the Disposal 981,747

m+/\ - MEEBEE Z

&Rk

TRAMAREREEDELEZ
BEEY BRREMFREE
BHoMERPELZAEIHR
BERARBREREEARER 4R
BREREXRTEAREB LD Z
BfE-

48.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows from financing activities.

No
w
~
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m+/\ - BEEBEE Z 48. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
BEHE @ ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (continued)
EEBR
JErEE NIREZ BRER HEHE
MARE & REEY  REZER Rk
Loan from
Due ultimate Loan from a Obligation
to related holding controlling  under finance
companies company Bank loans shareholder leases

TEL TR TR TR TR
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
(ME=1) (ME=t2) (MRt (ME=tm) (M th)

(note 30) (note 33) (note 28) (note 34) (note 29)

RZF-tEtA-H At 1July 2017 82,612 - 119,000 4,606 691
Renggy: Changes from cash flows:
SRERARRE B Loan from ultimate holding company - 350,000 - - =
ERERRRZES Loan from a controling sharefolder = = = 50,000 -
BEERRRRE & Repayment of loan from a controlling -

shareholder - - (50,000 -
TERTRE New bank borrowings - - 612,000 - -
[BEBIEE Repayment of bank borrowings - - (120,000) - -
BEEFBEAFNE Repayment of amount due to a related

company (58,170) - - - -
ERREREREZERTZ  Repayment of capital element of

obligation under finance leases - - - - (529)
EEFEREAEZFIETZ  Repayment of interest element of

obligation under finance leases - - - - 23
HEFERANERDAR Total changes from financing cash flows (58,170) 350,000 492,000 - (552)
BHAR: Exchange adjustments: 923 - - 136 -
Hipgs: Other changes:
flEH% Interest expenses - 3758 11,192 485 3
ERHE Interest paid - (3759) (11,19 (485) -
EENSHX -5 Imputed interest expenses - non-cash 8428 - - - -
EthEHER Total other changes 8428 - - - 3
RZF-\ERA=tH At 30 June 2018 33,793 350,000 611,000 4,742 162
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K BUR

AEEZETEZESRTABRER
ARE LT HEELERZE
BB 5 RUWGRIA - H b UK
R RAERREFH EHEN
IR~ B A B RIA R EE B
A RITER BIREEDER
B TEeRIA BEHREA
2 ENREDQRFOR R
Rtz ER R EEERA TR
HZEFR -ZEZeRIAZFHE
RAERAM R E - B EE R T
AR ERSRIEZERRZ
HREN T X - EEESEHI R
ERZEER - AEREEER X
BRMETEERE -

IIF

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, loans to a joint venture, trade receivables,
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank loans, amounts due from
joint ventures, derivative financial instruments, obligation
under finance leases, amounts due to related companies,
loan from a controlling shareholder and loan from ultimate
holding company. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

N
O
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the
following categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities. See notes 3.12 and 3.15 for explanations
about how the category of financial instruments
affects their subsequent measurement.

2018 2017
F#ET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMEE Financial assets
ERENEE Non-current assets
At E 2SR EZE  Available-for-sale financial assets 14,385 15,285
B R EWRIE - Loans and receivables:
— T —MAEEMEE - Loans to a joint venture
ZER 14,500 676,140
MEBEE Current assets
AAFEFTAEZZ  Finandal assets at fair value through
EREE profit or loss 6,066 5,770
B R EWRIE - Loans and receivables:
— B H RN IE — Trade receivables 111,737 96,085
— H & S FRIE — Other receivables 6,759 5,821
—JEWAEMZEFKIE  — Due from joint ventures 183 16
—-RekReEH — Cash and cash equivalents 1,128,664 374,648
1,247,343 476,570
1,282,294 1,173,765
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BHE @) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
SRMEERSREEEE 49.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
(%) liabilities (continued)
2018 2017
Fi#T FETL
HK$°000 HK$°000
ERAaE Financial liabilities
nBaR Current liabilities
R HEK AT EZ Financial liabilities measured at
TREE: amortised cost:
— & FEMNFIE — Trade payables (54,922) (58,703)
—E MR IE R — Other payables and accruals
fEEtE H (34,650) (40,067)
—RITER — Bank loans (611,000) (119,000)
—JEfRAEARIZIE - Due to related companies = (576)
—1% Hxﬂnﬁkiﬁzgm — Loan from a controlling shareholder = (4,606)
— BB ERIE — Obligation under finance leases (127) (377)
— BB EREE — Financial guarantee liabilities = (7,216)
(700,699) (230,545)
INAFERTAIEBZEZ  Finandal liabilities at fair value through
ERIAE: profit or loss:
—TEEmMT A — Derivative finandcial instruments = (143)
(700,699) (230,688)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
R HEK AT EZ Financial liabilities measured at
TREE: amortised cost:
— BT ERIE — Obligation under finance leases (35) (314)
—JEfRAEARIZRIE - Due to related companies (33,793) (82,036)
— BB EREE — Financial guarantee liabilities = (9,921)
— AR A RRHE 2~ Loan from ultimate holding company
- E70 (350,000) -
— RS IR ERIR 2 B3 — Loan from a controlling shareholder (4,742) =
(388,570) (92,271)
(1,089,269) (322,959)
IR AT 2 2 S R The financial assets and financial liabilities measured
ENtmafEEENTE at amortised costs approximate fair values.
5 -
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.2 Market risk

(@

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that
the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the
United Kingdom and the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HK$, United States dollars
("US$"), British Pounds, Canadian Dollars
(“CAD") and RMB. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currencies
of the subsidiaries in the Mainland China to
which these transactions relate. The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arises from certain financial instruments
including available-for-sale financial assets,
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and derivative financial
instruments which are denominated in
US$, Euro, British Pounds and CAD. During
the years, the Group did not have foreign
currency hedging policy but management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure.



Annual Report 2018 “F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE-_ZT—/\FRA=THILFE

m—+h - B EEREIEBE
REBUR (#)

49.2

()

miSEE (F)

SRS ()

TREAR TN
FR-_F—EFRA
ZTHRAREERR
FX B R R EEE LA
Sh EEFHEZ AR
BEXrEcREERA

f&e

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table summarises the
Group’s major financial assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group
companies as at 30 June 2018 and 2017.

T & T
Expressed in HKS'000
e B 3 mi
British
uss Euro Pounds CAD
RZF-\EXA=+H At 30 June 2018
e SREE Available-for-sale financial
assets - - - 1,287
BARKFHIE Trade receivables 106,530 - 5,094 =
ReRBeEE Cash and cash equivalents 246,765 673 4,582 by
BoRIHE Trade payables (40,209) (108) (294) =
BEFER Overall net exposure 313,086 565 9,382 1,309
RZF—tF~A=1H At 30 June 2017
EEEsSREE Available-for-sale financial
assets - - - 2,270
B RYIA Trade receivables 84,747 686 10,288 -
ReRReEH Cash and cash equivalents 59,215 61 5,112 21
BIERFIE Trade payables (48,594) (108) (18) -
fTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments = = (143) =
RETRR Overall net exposure 95,368 639 15,239 2,291

[N]
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.2 Market risk (continued)

() SMERE R (&) () Foreign currency risk (continued)
B 7 3 T B2 T B As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does
8 WA S B TER = not expect any significant movements in
TABTZERTE the US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity
BAEMENES: analysis in respect of the Group's financial
EERA BEAEE assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is
EAREBAFE T E disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such
ZEBMEERBESR sensitivity analysis does not give additional
B BEREDN R value in view of insignificant movement in
HERERSE BHZE the US$/HK$ exchange rates as at reporting
TR BT 2 E R date. The following table indicates the
IR WZEHRE approximate change in the Group's profit for
o A 3 B4R EEIME the year and equity in response to reasonably
B TREREER possible changes in the foreign exchange
R B AR S B A AR rates to which the Group has significant
X E KRR 2 INEE[E exposure at the reporting date.
R EIEAEEE)
NEE 2 F A &
Wz A g8 3R 2 BEAD
=<
2018 2017
SRR HER IR HER
Lt/ (TH) ikipa 7 #% A/ (TH) Votilpd7 3
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)
in foreign Effect on in foreign Effect on
exchange profit for exchange profit for
rates the year Equity rates the year Equity
FET FET FET FET
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BT Euro +5% 3 3 5% 2 2
5% (28) (28) 5% () (32)
T Brish Pounds +5% 469 469 5% 762 762
5% (469) (49) 5% (762) (762
7 CAD +5% 1 6 5% 1 115
5% Q) (65) 5% (1) (115)
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.2 Market risk (continued)

()

(ir)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the reporting
dates and that all other variables remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the
fair values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of change
in market price (other than changes in
interest rate and foreign exchange rate).
The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities which are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss, or available-for-sale.
The board of directors manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

[N]
ul
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.2 Market risk (continued)

(ir)

Equity price risk (continued)

At 30 June 2018, if equity prices had
increased/(decreased) by 10% and all other
variables were held constant:

- the Group's profit for the year would
increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$607,000 (2017: HK$577,000).
This is mainly due to the changes in
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and

- the Group's equity other than retained
profits would increase/(decrease) by
approximately HK$1,015,000 (2017:
HK$1,105,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity
investments included in the Group's
available-for-sale financial assets.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.2 Market risk (continued)

(ir)

(i)

Equity price risk (continued)

This sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the price change had occurred
at the reporting dates and has been applied
to the Group's investment on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to interest rate risk primarily arising
from bank balances and bank borrowings.
Majority of the bank borrowings are
arranged at variable rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
interest rates and repayment terms of the
bank borrowings outstanding at reporting
dates are disclosed in note 28.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

[N]
~



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE_Z-\FRA=THILFE

]

m—+h - B EEREIEBE
REBUR #)

49.2 TiHEAR (&)
(iii) TR @ (42 )

TERME B8 F YR
& & Am F R AR B
i ) 7 25 + 1001 5
Zh & —1001E E 2 (=
T — & +100fE &
25 & —1001E & 25) 7
KB HRKRE I
TR IR AN &R B R & R
HHHRE 2 RITE
B R BRITEER
BE(XEZHHEE

Y®) - FiA e

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.2 Market risk (continued)

(iir)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity
of the profit for the year and retained profits
to a change in interest rates of +100 basis
point and -100 basis point (2017: +100 basis
point and -100 basis point) with effect from
the beginning of the year. The calculations
are based on the Group’s bank balances
and interest-bearing bank borrowings held
at each reporting date which are subject to
variable interest rates. All other variables are
held constant.

R
2018 2017
F#T FE&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
fis % _EFH1001E 2 If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZT—t%F: (2017: 100 basis point) higher
100fE 22 )
FERFFI R R % T Net profit for the year and retained
CRA),/#m profits (decreased)/increased by (876) 2,499
{1 2= T 2k 100{E 2 B If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZB—+tF: (2017: 100 basis point) lower
100182 2)
FRFF RRE BT Net profit for the year and retained
@,/ () profits increased/(decreased) by 876 (2,499)
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.2

49.3

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
are considered to be effective.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instruments and cause a financial loss to the
Group. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
senior management compiles the credit and risk
management policies, to approve credit limits and
to determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount for each individual
account receivables at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the board of
directors considers that the Group’s credit risk is
effectively controlled and significantly reduced.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 36.2% (2017: 36.8%) of the
Group's trade receivables which were due from
one of the Group's largest customers within the
design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of the
jewellery and diamonds segment.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.3 Credit risk (continued)

Save as the aforesaid concentration of credit risk, the
Group's credit risk exposure is spread over a number
of counterparties and customers. Hence, it has no
significant concentration of credit risk of a single
debtor.

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as
cash is deposited in banks of high credit rating.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’
exposure to credit risk arising from long term and
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 24 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as the long-term receivables as detailed in
note 21(a), none of the Group's financial assets are
secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.4 Liquidity risk
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RZ BRI RER 2 X R 1
i o

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will
not able to meet its obligation associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of the
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows
in the short and long term. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risk.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights
to call the loans with immediate effect.

N
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49.4

HBEREEBIE 49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RER @) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REBELRER (&) 49.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

CLRE T —§R8  —ENER
RESE REREAE HEAME PRmE WEM L

Total More than

contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cashflow  on demand 2 years 2 years

THET T TET THET THET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

RZF-\EXA=+H Asat30June 2018

FiiteMas: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
B HRMNTIE Trade payables 54,922 54,922 54,922 = =
EtENFUERIEERE  Other payables and accruals 34,650 34,650 34,650 - -
BERERE Obligation under finance leases 162 166 130 36 -
RITER Bank loans 611,000 611,000 611,000 - -
EREENAFE Due to related companies 33,793 33,793 - 31,007 2,786
ERREREZER Loan from a controlling shareholder 4,742 4,742 = = 478
SEERARRE ZEF  Loan from ultimate holding company 350,000 361,751 - - 361,751
1,089,269 1,101,024 700,702 31,043 369,279
RZFE—tEXAZ+H Asat30June 2017
Fiitemas: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
B HRMNTIE Trade payables 58,703 58,703 58,703 - -
EtENFUERIEEA  Other payables and accruals 40,067 40,067 40,067 - -
BERERE Obligation under finance leases 691 o)) 399 33 -
RITER Bank loans 119,000 119,000 119,000 - -
EREENRAZFE Due to related companies 82,612 92,258 576 91,682 -
BRRRRE 2 ER Loan from a controlling shareholder 4,606 4,606 4,606 - -
305,679 315,356 223351 92,005 -
ERLZMBER: Financial guarantee issued:
RAERER Maximum amount guaranteed 17,137 412,763+ 412,763+ - =
L fis R 17 R e W =@ A/ o The Group would be liable to pay the bank if the

HER BIAREEZE
AERRITERZE
fFo

bank was unable to recover the loans.
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M+ A4~ BHEEEEEE 49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBUR &) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
494 REE£EMRE (F) 49.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

TR B IR E SRR The table that follows summarises the maturity
&2 SRITE R Z BHRH analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand
AT LTI ERE R B clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
FrEz EERLH - & out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
HBFEUAEHNEFEZ interest payments computed using contractual rates.
B B REIARLE Taking into account the Group's financial position,
2B EFREBIR the directors do not consider that it is probable
TP KA B TR H Z kA that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
RrER 2 HIEHE - E548 immediate repayment. The directors believe that
5 BBRTEFTH SR such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with
BERBEIES . TEEE the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
KEHEE- agreements.

HERAT-REREER YD
WEREXRBHRLZRTER
Maturity analysis - Bank loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

RHRER —ERNE  —ENER
RESE RERELE REAHE Uk WEML

Total More than

contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cashflow  on demand 2 years 2 years

T TiET T TET THET
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000

RZF-\§7A=+H Asat30June2018
RITER Bank loan 611,000 661,106 143,903 - 517,203

RZF—tEXA=TH Asat30June2017
RITEH Bank loan 119,000 122,359 101,869 20,490 =

N
ul
W
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the instruments and
derivatives, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

— Level 3: inputs for the instruments that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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M+ A4 -~ BHEEEEEE 49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBUR &) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
495 REESHBERRRERZ 49.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
REEFE (&) consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)
THEERAEREMS The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
AZ A EREER Ty the financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its
BEH AT EFEARE entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
AREEZHEERBAE is significant to the fair value measurement. The
BETE o iR e MBIk & financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
BEATHEFTECERMERE in the consolidated statement of financial position
KBERATEREZD are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:
BT
$1E EV)] $3JE @5t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAT FHET FAT TAL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
(HizH@) (HizE()) (K@)
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))

RZF-/\EAXAZ+H Asat30June 2018
EHEZSREE Available-for-sale financial assets

~ERBEMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 8,868 - - 8,868
—TEBIN EMZRAES - Equity securities listed in overseas 1,286 - - 1,286

BIEEEZ EM&ESH:  Listed securities held for trading:
~ERELEMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 6,066 = = 6,066

16,220 - - 16,220

RZE—tEAA=+H Asat30June 2017

HE SREE Available-for-sale financial assets
—ERBLMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 8,784 = = 8,784
—TEBIN LM 2 RAES - Equity securities listed in overseas 2,270 - - 2,270

BEEE 2 EMES:  Listed securities held for trading:

—ERB LM ZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 5,770 = = 5,770
fTESBTE Derivative financial instruments = (143) - (143)
16,824 (143) - 16,681

N
ul
ul
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

49.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for

the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

compared to the previous reporting periods.

Notes:

(a)

Fair values of listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their market prices at
the reporting date and have been translated using
the spot foreign currency rates at the end of the
reporting period where appropriate.

Fair values of derivative financial instruments are
measured using quoted prices in active markets for
similar instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

The Group's financial assets classified in Level 3
use valuation technique based on significant inputs
that are not based on observable market data.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).
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i+ EFEE 50. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
REEEREB HEB R AR The primary objective of the Group's capital management
REFRECEETREERL is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
A HHEBRGKRRER healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
RAZ&ER- shareholders’ value.
AEETEEHEERER WEE The Group manages its capital structure and makes
AR B ENE TR - BHERE adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
o} AR E AR NEE A AR conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
MERREZ AN ZK’E mRFEER Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
BERNBEITHRGD -RNAFE return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
MBEFE AEEMEESE changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
B BUEREAR T o during the current and previous years.

N
ul
~



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE_Z-\FRA=THILFE

i+ EXEE @ 50. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

N
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BATEARM R PR 2 SR R L fE
BERBERREIREEHAE -
AEESEREEARBLRER
REBKF-BEXZRA ~EE
K& Rz EEABL KGR
REEKF - RBEAHZEE
BELLEMT

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings

less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated

statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain

the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the directors

are of the opinion that the Group's gearing ratio was

maintained at reasonable level at the reporting date. The

gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:

2018 2017
F#ET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
mE AR Current liabilities
RITERK Bank loans 611,000 119,000
FE - B8 A R 5K IE Due to related companies = 576
PR R IR 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder = 4,606
ERBARE Non-current liabilities
FET R A R 5IR Due to related companies 33,793 82,036
SR A RREZ Loan from ultimate holding
B company 350,000 -
ERRERERE CER Loan from a controlling shareholder 4,742 =
BIRAETE Total debts 999,535 206,218
BoReRIReER Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,128,664) (374,648)
BIRFE Net debts (129,129) (168,430)
AR Total equity 2,244,283 1,844,465
W e B RE MBI FRE Total equity and net debts 2,115,154 1,676,035
BEARLE Gearing ratio TE A N/A TiE A N/A
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For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE-_ZT—/\FRA=THILFE

I+— - HEBHEER 51. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
RZE-—NFELAZ+H &&E On 20 July 2018, the Group entered into 11 conditional
EE—-FEAHFI 115 E GHE and legally binding preliminary agreements with a
REAERARN 2EREE W seller in relation to the proposed acquisition of equity
FRNAYEEREZREIIREA shares of 11 companies and shareholder’s loan owing
AEZRGN AR ZERAE by these companies to the seller at a consideration of
RZBRAZBRREF RER HK$129,000,000. These companies are the holding
129,000,000/ JT ° 3% & A Al Jh companies of subsidiaries which principal asset is the
ZHEZEERBAIRME commercial properties in Hong Kong. Further details were
B RRI IR AT E— disclosed in the announcement dated 24 July 2018.

HEREMA=E—N\FLA
—tmEZASABRE-

I+ #EMBRE 52. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
HE_ZT-N\FRA=THILF The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
EZHEEMBHRERERZE—/\ June 2018 were approved for issue by the directors on 24
FRAA-THHESZSHET September 2018.
o
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L FHBHRE FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
REBEBEAAETBEEZEZBAR A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
BE BEREEHEZME (BEA controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
HEE AMMEEZIBRE  WE BT extracted from the respective published audited financial statements
(@A) ) EANR o th B 2 I A and restated as appropriate, is set out as below. This summary does
BEZIREMBHRET 2 —55 - not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
£ RESULTS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Fi#x TAT TAT TEAT TRAT
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000

€ Revenue 391,882 627,293 552,575 730,900 868,103
BRETERADER,/ (BE) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 429,833 102,549  (186,055) 65,158 51,971
Fis® (%) /E% Income tax (expense)/credit (75,078) (4,098) 10,363 76,179 (1,232)
FREH,/ (EE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 354,755 98,451  (175,692) 141,337 50,739
JEE s Non-controlling interests 4 (145) 26 234 (159)
L UNGIE: 2N Net profit/(loss) attributable to

(BE%EH) the owners of the Company 354,759 98,306  (175,666) 141,571 50,580
EE BERIEEFES ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
F#T THT THT THT TAT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BEE Total assets 3,474,725 2,314,865 2954644 3,097,489 2,866,683
BEE Total liabilities (1,230,442)  (470,400) (1,230,703) (1,099,418) (1,020,457
IR Non-controlling interests 6,402 6,398 6,156 6,130 5,896

2,250,685 1,850,863 1,730,097 2,004,201 1,852,122
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